
 
 
 
 

 
 

- 1 - 

 
Notice of a meeting of 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday, 13 July 2011 
6.00 pm 

Pittville Room, Municipal Offices, Promenade 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter (Vice-Chair), Jacky Fletcher, 

Rob Garnham, Penny Hall (Chair), Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, 
Helena McCloskey, Charles Stewart and Paul Wheeldon 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 

 
Agenda  

 
   
1.  APOLOGIES  

    
2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

    
3.  AGREEMENT OF MINUTES OF MEETING 

HELD ON THE 11 MAY 2011 
(Pages 1 - 

10) 
    
4.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 10am on 
the fifth working day before the date of the 
meeting - Wednesday 6 July 
 

 

    
5.  MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 

A. By Council 
B. By Cabinet 

 

    
6. 6.05pm CABINET MEMBER BRIEFING 

Cabinet Member Sustainability 
Cabinet Member Built Environment 

 

    
7. 6.35pm SECOND ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE AIRPORT - GREEN 
POLICY 2010-2011 
Report of the Joint Airport Scrutiny Working 
Group 

(Pages 11 - 
24) 

    
8. 6.55pm BUILT ENVIRONMENT COMMISSIONING 

PROJECT 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Built 
Environment  

(Pages 25 - 
38) 



    
9. 7.15pm STREET CLEANSING SATISFACTION 

Discussion paper of the Environmental 
Maintenance Manager 

(Pages 39 - 
60) 

    
10. 7.40pm ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

WORK PLAN 2011-12 
(Pages 61 - 

64) 
    
11.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 

 

    
12.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

14 September 2011 
 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011. 
 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday, 11th May, 2011 
6.00  - 8.00 pm 

Attendees 
Councillors: Penny Hall (Chair), Nigel Britter, Jacky Fletcher, Rob Garnham, 

Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Helena McCloskey, 
Charles Stewart and Paul Wheeldon 

Also in attendance:  Barbara Exley (Public Protection Manager), Grahame Lewis 
(Executive Director), Owen Parry (Head of Integrated Transport 
and Sustainability), Councillor John Rawson (Cabinet Member 
Built Environment), Mike Redman (Director of Built Environment), 
Adam Reynolds (Green Space Development Manager) and 
Councillor Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability) 

 
Minutes 

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Pat Pratley, Lead Officer (Grahame Lewis 
attended as her substitute) and Rob Bell, Director of Operations.   
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
None declared.  
 

3. MINUTES 
The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 02 March 2011 be 
agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
None received.  
 

5. MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 
None referred.  
 

6. CABINET MEMBER BRIEFING 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment updated members on the proposed 
redevelopment process of North Place and Portland Street which remained on 
target.  Five bidders had been short listed to develop proposals in line with the 
development brief.  They were selected on the basis of their previous 
experience of developing mixed use schemes in town centres and their financial 
strength to deliver such projects.  
 
The five consortia had met with Officers and Members last Tuesday (3 May) 
and this had been a positive meeting.  They would draw-up their initial 
proposals and costing by July, at which point all members would be updated 
and from this, two short listed schemes would be open for public comments 
from 22 August to 9 September 2011.   

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

 
He had hoped to be in a position to offer more details about the Midwinter site 
but at this time was not able to.   
 
There were a number of developments in which CBC was not involved, the 
Brewery Phase 2 and Jessops Avenue, this gave a good indication that there 
was an appetite to invest in Cheltenham.   
 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) had only today confirmed that a 
consultation evening would take place tomorrow (12 May) in the Cambray 
Room of the Municipal offices for stage 2 of the parking review; South 
Cheltenham.  This had been considered inadequate notice and these concerns 
had been expressed to GCC.  
 
In stark contrast GCC had offered sufficient notice of the upcoming consultation 
regarding the ‘surface water management plan’, full details of which he would 
forward to all members. 
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
to questions from members of the committee; 
 
• Unfortunately timescales for the Midwinter site had slipped due to 

technical issues, but it was anticipated that a planning submission could 
be renewed in two weeks time.  

• Neptune’s fountain would be switched on at some point this month 
(May) however, the pumps were not fully functioning and did require 
work, but this would be done at a later stage.  There were costs 
associated with such repairs and consideration was being given to 
funding these repairs.   

 
There was general consensus that the committee were eager to see Neptune’s 
fountain repaired and fully functioning as soon as possible.  The Chair 
suggested that in the interim public notices could be displayed advising of any 
issues and that this should apply in similar circumstances across Cheltenham.  
The Executive Director committed to having Officers email members to confirm 
the approach to Neptune’s fountain.   
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability confirmed that the consultation on the 
revised layout design of Imperial Gardens would start on Monday (16 May). It 
would be based at the Municipal offices and would run through the rest of May 
and into June.  He noted the agreement that it would then be debated at 
Council rather than the overview and scrutiny committees.  Members supported 
this approach.   
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Sustainability to 
questions from members of the committee; 
 
• The decision to hold the Imperial Gardens consultation at the Municipal 

offices rather than Regent Arcade (for example) was based on officer 
resource rather than budget.  A press release would be circulated, it was 
hoped there would be radio coverage and members were asked to 
communicate it to their constituents.   

Page 2



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

• The box office at Imperial Gardens was a late addition to the Jazz 
Festival and admittedly he too had been surprised at the level of food 
outlets within the large tented village this year, which was not in-keeping 
with Jazz Festivals of the past.  However, the ambiance was an issue for 
Cheltenham Festivals and in future the level of tentage would be limited 
and spread across a larger area.  He would confirm that the appropriate 
licensing permissions had been obtained.  

 
Members were concerned that a matter as important as consultation on Imperial 
Gardens based solely at the Municipal offices would not attract as large of a 
response as there was interest in the subject and queried whether Officers were 
not available to carry out consultation at other venues at any point during the 
consultation period.  The Executive Director emphasized how resources at the 
Council had reduced and the level of resource required in organising and 
supporting public consultation at alternative venues could not be sustained.  
The Cabinet Member would investigate whether alternative arrangements were 
possible but could make no commitment.  
 
In relation to the new waste and recycling service the Cabinet Member 
Sustainability, based on his own observations and feedback from officers, 
considered the implementation to have been successful.  Admittedly there had 
been some issues in areas consisting of non-conventional housing (park 
homes), though the issues highlighted had been addressed.  An ongoing issue 
was flats, especially those with communal waste bins or storage, this was 
proving a difficult issue to overcome and Officers were meeting on Friday (13 
May) to discuss a way forward.  
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Sustainability to 
questions from members of the committee; 
 
• At this time there were no plans to provide larger food waste bins to 

larger families, however, residents were free to put out the large and 
small bin that had already been issued.  

• There were a number of bedsits in the town centre which offered little or 
no storage for waste and to tackle any issues, a number of town centre 
streets benefited from weekly or twice weekly collections.  

• Officers were aware of the issues in St. Pauls with students leaving bins 
on the highway when vacating properties outside of term time and 
additional collections were made.   

• Garden waste collections did not include the collection of black bags and 
at this time there was no solution for residents who were unable to 
transfer their brown bin to the front of the property for collection.   

 
The Chair thanked both Cabinet Members for their attendance and summarised 
the matters arising from this item; 
 
• The Executive Director would draft a letter to GCC on behalf of the 

committee expressing members concerns in relation to what was 
considered inadequate notice of the parking consultation event. 

• Details of the repairs required at Neptune’s fountain and plans to 
address them would be sent to all members and officers would consider 
if a notice advising the public could be displayed at this site and others 
across the town.   

Page 3



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

• The Cabinet Member Sustainability would investigate whether there 
were any resources for undertaking the Imperial Gardens consultation in 
other venues.  

 
7. DRAFT ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2011-12 

The Executive Director introduced the draft work plan 2011-2012 as circulated 
with the agenda.  Consideration of the plan would allow members to shape 
upcoming scrutiny and offered the opportunity for more effective involvement in 
wider scrutiny issues.   The comprehensive plan emerged following discussions 
between Officers, the Chair and Vice-Chair and was informed by the Corporate 
Strategy and Forward Plan.   
 
The Chair invited members to comment on and add to the draft work plan 2011-
2012.  
 
The appropriate Officers gave the following responses to questions from 
members of the committee; 
 
• The paper on ‘New Homes Bonus’ would not outline how any monies 

would be used, but rather, outline the strategy regarding long term 
vacant dwellings.   

• The Localism Bill could see the Planning service change, though this 
would be covered under the commissioning review.  

• Admittedly the CBC Travel Plan had stalled but was now in hand.  The 
GCC restructure had proved problematic in attempts to take the matter 
forward, however, Officers were now in post.   

 
Councillor Hibbert considered the notice given by GGC for the parking event 
tomorrow (12 May) was inadequate and would prevent people from being in a 
position to attend.  Whilst she did not wish to delay the process she felt that 
given the importance of CBC input, GCC should consider offering a further 
opportunity and provide sufficient notice.  Members supported the proposal that 
the Executive Director draft a letter on behalf of the committee, expressing their 
concern about the insufficient notice provided to CBC.  
 
Following comments by members of the committee relating to cracked paving 
slabs and tarmac repairs, the Executive Director suggested that the committee 
first consider the cost constraints of replacing slabs with other materials.  
Members were happy with this proposal and the item would be added to the 
work plan.  
 
The Chair volunteered to sit on the Climate Change Working Group and noted 
that it was she, rather than Councillor Driver that was nominated to sit on the 
Sustainable Management of Green Space Working Group.  
 

8. BUILT ENVIRONMENT SERVICES - COMMISSIONING PROJECT 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment introduced the paper as circulated with 
the agenda, which he took as read, choosing to highlight key points only.   
 
Item 1.1 detailed the services which the review encompassed and outlined 
progress to date.    
 

Page 4



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

A key aim of the commissioning approach adopted by the council was to 
achieve cost savings but this was by no means the overriding priority.  The first 
phase of the review, analysis, involved taking a fundamental look at what the 
council wanted their Built Environment service to deliver, in a constructive way 
to benefit the town.  Consideration would be given to whether services or 
functions (where possible, given that the council were obliged to deliver certain 
services), should be devolved to Parish Councils for example, or whether a 
consultation process should be devised, which encouraged community 
feedback.   
 
The paper evidenced that the service was by and large, efficient and effective, 
however, ‘Systems Thinking’ would identify waste from systems and processes.  
This would, where possible, drive out waste and create efficiencies.   
 
The Cabinet Member Working Group met for the first time on the 13 April where 
additional issues were raised and as such the timescales for the review had 
been extended.  A preliminary report outlining the potential outcomes of the 
review would be prepared for Cabinet on the 26 July, with the final report 
scheduled for consideration by Cabinet in September.  These reports would be 
available to the committee for comment prior to the Cabinet meetings.  
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
in response to questions from members of the committee; 
 
• He understood members concerns about the devolution of services 

and/or powers to Parish Councils, especially given that not all areas in 
Cheltenham had them, but this would be approached with caution.   

• The suggestion that there was a relationship between the speed at 
which planning decisions were reached and the level of appeals was 
possible and this would be considered further.  

 
The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member Built Environment for his attendance 
and welcomed future updates.  
 

9. STREET SCENE ENFORCING REVIEW 
The Public Protection Manager introduced the paper which was circulated 
separately to the agenda.  The item had originally been scheduled for the March 
meeting and its deferral to this meeting had been necessitated by a restructure 
and redundancies.  
 
Street Scene enforcement was an effective service for which demand often 
outstripped capacity, but there were areas for improvement, specifically to do 
with links with other services and partners.  
 
The following responses were given by the Public Protection Manager to 
questions from members of the committee; 
 
• From the 1 June 2011 Police Officers and PCSO’s would be based in 

the Municipal offices and discussions were ongoing in relation to who 
could undertake what tasks.  A memorandum of understanding was 
currently being drawn up and this was considered a positive move by 
both CBC and the Police Authority.   

Page 5



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

• The 2000 requests for service referred to in item 2.2 included noise 
complaints, waste, street cleaning, highway obstructions, abandoned 
vehicles and increasingly, fly tipping.   

• There was a perception that some areas of Cheltenham were far more 
of an issue than others.  A mapping exercise was being undertaken in 
order to ensure that enforcement activities were co-ordinated.  

• Officers did benefit from flexible working hours this was however, being 
hampered by the long term absence of one of the officers.  An ‘out of 
hours’ service was staffed by 2 Street Scene Officers and 2 more were 
in the process of being trained.  The PCSO’s based at the Municipal 
offices from 1 June 2011 would also enhance the service.  

 
The Chair thanked the Public Protection Manager for her attendance and 
commended the work of the Enforcement Officers which she advised was 
regularly acknowledged at Parish and Police meetings.   
 

10. REGENT ARCADE AND GROSVENOR TERRACE PARKING 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment introduced the paper as circulated with 
the agenda and offered some political context to the issue.  Members were 
reminded that the budget agreed in February included a sum of money for car 
parking equipment.   
 
The rationale for investment across the parking facilities included cashable 
savings, greater customer satisfaction and improved overall performance.  In 
the current economic climate it was nonsensical to increase charges in a bid to 
increase income.  The logical conclusion had been to reduce operating costs.  
 
Initial investment would be directed at replacing the operating and management 
systems at Regent Arcade and Grosvenor Terrace car parks, which were 
considered to be at the end of their expected life cycle.  A business case was 
currently being compiled by Officers.   
 
The Head of Integrated Transport and Sustainability reiterated that the current 
systems were ageing, it proved difficult to source replacement parts which given 
the age of the system were increasingly second-hand and from January 2012 
the system would no longer be credit card complaint.  Customers and 
colleagues at the shopping centres had grown increasingly frustrated with the 
limitations of the ageing systems.  
 
Whilst the new system needed to be future proof, this could be achieved without 
spending more than was necessary.  As part of the evaluation process CBC 
undertook some ‘soft market testing’ by inviting some leading suppliers to 
present their systems, this proved encouraging and demonstrated the need for 
a customer led approach rather than a technology led approach.   
 
Ultimately the aim was to extend the new system to other car parks across 
Cheltenham, a move that would be all the more crucial as a result of the 
ongoing investment by GCC in on-street parking.   
 
The following responses were given by the Head of Integrated Transport and 
Sustainability to questions from members of the committee; 
 

Page 6



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

• New operating systems could include enforcement.  The press had 
misconstrued the suggestion that spaces could be pre-sold, the proposal 
was in actual fact a result of town centre hotels enquiring whether 
spaces could be pre-booked outside of normal business hours.   

• All car parks currently offered disabled parking bays though work was in 
progress to bring some of them up to current standards.  Engagement 
with the Blue Badge User Group had identified that whilst a number of 
badge users were accessing parking in Cheltenham, this was, in the 
main, on-street parking.   

• Following discussions with the procurement team, the suggestion was 
that expressions of interest could be invited in approximately two weeks 
time, preferred tenders received and the new system implemented by 
December.  

 
Councillor Wheeldon advocated the proposed upgrades which he felt would be 
vital on the implementation of increased residents parking and with the loss of 
North Place and Portland Street.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member Built Environment and the Head of 
Integrated Transport and Sustainability for their attendance.  She felt it was an 
exciting prospect for Cheltenham which she fully supported.  
 

11. GREEN SPACE STRATEGY 
The Green Space Development Manager introduced the paper as circulated 
with the agenda.  The paper outlined some of the accomplishments of the 
Green Space Strategy since it was approved by Cabinet in 2009 and raised 
points for consideration.   
 
Appendix 1 detailed progress on specifics within the Action Plan and overall, 
good progress had been achieved in several key areas.  Highlights included a 
number of successful funding applications, high customer satisfaction with 
allotments, increased bio-diversity, Green Flag awards and significantly 
increased partnership working and volunteer wardens. 
 
The following responses were given by the Green Space Development 
Manager and Cabinet Member Sustainability in response to questions from 
members of the committee; 
 
• Some sites had an established management plan, in which case it would 

prove simple to direct resources (volunteers) to the sites, though 
admittedly work to some sites was far more ad-hoc.  There were issues 
about health & safety and insurances, which could be overcome and 
Park Rangers would maintain an overview.   

• A presentation on work in support of bio-diversity and sustainability to 
the Climate Change Working Group could be arranged. 

• Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) of which one may already 
exist, would allow for S106 contributions to be targeted at strategic level 
sites.  

• The formal quarterly meetings with Gloucestershire County Council 
related mainly to operational matters including the cutting of grass 
verges and most recently roundabout sponsorship.  The Green Space 
Development Manager did not attend these meetings personally.  

Page 7



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 13 July 2011 

• Imperial and Montpellier Gardens were assessed some years ago for 
the English Heritage ‘Register of Listed Parks and Gardens of Specific 
Historic Interest in England’ and were not considered to meet the 
relevant standards.  History of parks was key in this assessment, 
notable designers, etc, though they could be reassessed in the future.  
Sandford Park could well be added as its history was proving very 
interesting.  

• For clarity, the second to last recommendation on page 39 referred to a 
reduction to the size threshold for sites in order that more could be 
considered as meeting the 300m accessibility standard.   

 
Councillors Fletcher and Garnham advised members of the Big Community 
Offer Highways.  This was a new offer being developed by GCC which would 
allow interested parish, town and neighbourhood groups to apply for and fund 
enhanced highway items (trees, drainage works, etc), which would be match 
funded by GCC.  This was a pilot project in certain areas of Cheltenham at the 
moment.   
 
Councillor Garnham suggested that whilst Green Flags were an excellent 
indicator of clean, safe and well managed green spaces, perhaps another 
useful indicator would be usage of parks and gardens.  Whilst resources at the 
council were reduced, perhaps community groups could undertake spot checks.   
 
The Chair thanked the Green Space Development Manager and Cabinet 
Member Sustainability for their attendance.  She felt the Green Space Strategy 
was one of the most exciting to be considered by the committee given that 
green space was so special to Cheltenham.   
 
The Green Space Development Manager would organise a meeting of the 
Green Space Strategy working group in the coming weeks.  
 

12. CABINET WASTE WORKING GROUP (CWWG) 
Councillor Britter, a representative of the Cabinet Waste Working Group 
(CWWG) explained that the group had last met when the new waste and 
recycling service had recently been launched.  An early achievement was the 
tonnage of waste that was bypassing landfill and being recycled.   
 
The approach that had been taken was to ‘go live’ with the service and address 
tenant and member issues as they arose.  And to date this approach had been 
successful.   
 
The next meeting of the CWWG was scheduled for a week on Monday (23 May) 
and members were invited to email Councillor Britter and/or Fletcher before that 
time so that they might raise specific issues for discussion and resolution.   
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO BE URGENT 
AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 
There were no urgent items for discussion.   
 

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting was scheduled for the 13 July 2011. 

Penny Hall 
Chairman 

Page 8



MA
TT
ER

S A
RI
SIN

G 
FR

OM
 EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 O
&S

 M
EE

TIN
G:
 11

 M
AY

 20
11
 

 
Ag

en
da
 

No
.  

Ite
m 

Ac
tio
n r

eq
uir

ed
 

Of
fic
er 
/ 

Me
mb

er 
Co

mp
let
ed
  

 
6 

Ne
ptu

ne
’s 

fou
nta

in 
Sw

itc
h o

n d
ate

, re
pa
irs
 ne

ed
ed
 an

d t
im
es
ca
le 
for

 co
mp

let
ion

 at
 

Ne
ptu

ne
’s 
Fo
un
tai
n 

Pr
op
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 

Pa
rks

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
 

� 

Ac
tio
n t
ak
en
: T

he
 w

ate
r fe

atu
re 

ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 sw

itc
he

d o
n. 

 Th
e c

on
tra

ct 
run

s f
rom

 M
ay

 to
 O

cto
be

r (i
nc

lus
ive

). N
ep

tun
e’s

 Fo
un

tai
n 

ha
s s

om
e u

nd
erl

yin
g m

ec
ha

nic
al 

pro
ble

ms
 w

he
reb

y p
res

su
re 

is 
ins

uff
icie

nt 
to 

ma
int

ain
 flo

w 
to 

the
 ou

ter
 sp

ray
 he

ad
s, 

so
 w

ill o
pe

rat
e 

thi
s y

ea
r o

n t
he

 fro
nt 

an
d r

ea
r s

pra
y h

ea
ds

 on
ly.

 Pr
op

ert
y S

erv
ice

s a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y t

en
de

rin
g t

he
 se

rvi
ce

s o
f a

 C
on

se
rva

tor
 to

 re
po

rt o
n 

the
 st

ate
 an

d c
on

dit
ion

 of
 N

ep
tun

e's
 Fo

un
tai

n a
nd

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
, re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n a

nd
 co

sti
ng

 fo
r it

s r
efu

rbi
sh

me
nt;

 th
e 

rep
ort

 is
 du

e f
or 

co
mp

let
ion

 th
is 

fin
an

cia
l ye

ar.
 

6 
Pu

bli
c n

oti
ce
s 

Of
fic
ers

 to
 co

ns
ide

r w
he
the

r p
ub
lic
 no

tic
es
 ca

n d
eta

il r
ep
air
s 

an
d t
im
es
ca
les

 fo
r c
om

ple
tio
n a

t s
ite
s s

uc
h a

s N
ep
tun

e’s
 

fou
nta

in,
 ac

ro
ss
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 
Pr
op
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce
s /
  

� 
Ac

tio
n t
ak
en
: P

rop
ert

y S
erv

ice
s w

ill e
ns

ure
 pu

bli
c n

oti
ce

s a
re 

dis
pla

ye
d w

he
n c

arr
yin

g o
ut 

rep
air

s o
r p

lan
ne

d m
ain

ten
an

ce
.  

6 
Im
pe
ria
l 

Ga
rd
en
s 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 an

d O
ffic

ers
 to
 co

ns
ide

r if
 ot
he
r 

ve
nu

es
 ca

n h
os
t th

e c
on

su
lta
tio
n t
hr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e c
on

su
lta
tio
n 

pe
rio

d 
Ca

bin
et 

Me
mb

er 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 

� 
Ac

tio
n t
ak
en
: D

es
ign

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 di

sp
lay

s w
ere

 or
ga

nis
ed

 in
 th

e R
eg

en
t a

nd
 Be

ec
hw

oo
d A

rca
de

s f
or 

da
tes

 in
 M

ay
 an

d J
un

e. 
 

7 
Pa

rki
ng
 

str
ate

gy
 

Wr
ite
 le
tte
r t
o G

CC
 on

 be
ha
lf o

f th
e c

om
mi
tte
e o

utl
ini
ng

 
co
nc
ern

s o
f m

em
be
rs 
tha

t n
oti
ce
 of
 pa

rki
ng
 ev

en
t w

as
 no

t 
sa
tis
fac

tor
y 

Ow
en
 Pa

rry
 

� 
Ac

tio
n t
ak
en
: T

he
 In

teg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 M

an
ag

er 
se

nt 
ini

tia
l c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 to

 G
CC

 on
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

iss
ue

s i
nc

lud
ing

 th
is 

on
e a

nd
 is

 
cu

rre
ntl

y i
n t

he
 pr

oc
es

s o
f d

isc
us

sin
g t

he
 po

int
s r

ais
ed

 in
 m

ore
 de

tai
l. 

7 
Cr
ac
ke
d p

av
ing

 
sla

bs
 

GC
C 
Of
fic
ers

 to
 ou

tlin
e c

os
t c
on

str
ain

ts 
of 
rep

lac
ing

 cr
ac
ke
d 

pa
vin

g s
lab

s w
ith
 ne

w 
pa
vin

g s
lab

s a
s a

pp
os
e t
o o

the
r m

ate
ria
ls 

Je
rem

y 
Wi
llia

ms
on
 

on
go

ing
 

Ac
tio
n t
ak
en
: T

his
 is

 be
ing

 de
alt

 w
ith

 as
 a 

joi
nt 

ini
tia

tiv
e w

ith
 Je

rem
y W

illia
ms

on
 (C

ivic
 Pr

ide
), w

ho
 ha

s c
on

tac
ted

 G
CC

 di
rec

t.  
Pr

inc
ipl

es
 w

ere
 ad

op
ted

 at
 in

for
ma

l C
ab

ine
t in

 Ju
ne

, w
ith

 C
ab

ine
t M

em
be

r B
uil

t E
nv

iro
nm

en
t ta

kin
g t

he
 le

ad
. O

nc
e f

orm
al 

ap
pro

va
l 

by
 C

ab
ine

t h
as

 be
en

 ac
hie

ve
d J

ere
my

 W
illia

ms
on

 w
ill l

iai
se

 w
ith

 N
ige

l R
igl

ar 
at 

GC
C 

to 
pro

gre
ss

. 
 11
 

Gr
ee
n s

pa
ce
 

Of
fic
ers

 to
 co

ns
ide

r if
 an

d h
ow

 sp
ot 
ch
ec
ks
 co

uld
 be

 un
de
rta

ke
n 

to 
mo

nit
or
 us

ag
e o

f p
ark

s a
nd
 ga

rd
en
s a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 

Ad
am

 
Re

yn
old

s  
on

go
ing

 
Ac

tio
n t
ak
en
: T

he
 G

ree
n S

pa
ce

 St
rat

eg
y w

ork
ing

 gr
ou

p m
et 

on
 th

e 2
8 J

un
e a

nd
 w

ere
 sc

he
du

led
 to

 co
ns

ide
r th

is 
ma

tte
r.  

 
 

Page 9



Page 10
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$2jc14h0q.doc Page 1 of 3 Last updated 01 July 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 13 July 2011 
Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy Second Annual Review 
Report of Councillor Les Godwin, Chair of the Joint Airport 

Scrutiny Working Group (JASWG) 
 

Accountable member Leader of the Council, Councillor Steve Jordan 
Accountable officer Executive Director, Pat Pratley 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Joint Airport Scrutiny Working Group met on 20th June to consider the 

second annual review report of Gloucestershire Airport’s Green Policy.  The 
points covered by the discussion are detailed in the meeting minutes, which 
are attached at appendix 2.  Overall, the Working Group was satisfied with 
the progress made by the Airport during the review period and approved the 
recommendations contained in the report. 

Recommendations The JASWG recommends the Committee accepts the review report and the 
recommendations contained within it.   

 
Financial implications None – review of a document owned by Gloucestershire Airport 
Legal implications None – review of a document owned by Gloucestershire Airport 
HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None – review of a document owned by Gloucestershire Airport 

Key risks  None – review of a document owned by Gloucestershire Airport 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The Airport’s Green Policy is not a council document; however, as a 
shareholding council, encouraging the Airport to improve its environmental 
performance ensures it contributes to the council and community 
objectives of reducing carbon emissions.  The Airport is also encouraged 
to take positive steps to engage with the local community.   

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

In addition to the above, the Policy also includes measures to tackle other 
environmental concerns including noise pollution, water quality and waste 
management.  

Agenda Item 7
Page 11



   
$2jc14h0q.doc Page 2 of 3 Last updated 01 July 2011 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy was approved by the cabinets of both shareholding councils 

in April 2009.  Included in this was a commitment to monitor and review the policy on an annual 
basis. 

1.2 This second review covers the period 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011. 
1.3 The review was undertaken by officers from both councils.  The Airport was asked to provide 

evidence of progress on implementing the recommendations from the first annual review and of 
any additional activity related to the areas covered by the Green Policy.  Officers then reviewed 
this evidence.  A meeting was held with representatives from the Airport to discuss these findings 
prior to consideration of the report by the JASWG. 

1.4 The JASWG met on 20th June 2011 to consider the review.  The Managing Director of 
Gloucestershire Airport also attended this meeting, enabling a full discussion to take place on the 
review report.  The points covered by this discussion are detailed in the meeting minutes, which 
are attached at Appendix 2. 

2. Reasons for recommendation 
2.1 Overall, the Working Group was satisfied with the progress made by the Airport during the review 

period and approved the report’s recommendations, which are summarised in the table below. 
Overall 
policy 

• For clarity, include an appendix which draws together all baselines, targets and 
timescales for different strands of work 

• Publish updated policy on website 
Noise • Publish year-on-year comparison of noise complaints against benchmarking data in 

green policy  
• Draw together all relevant information into noise section of the website – this will also 

serve to fulfil the outstanding committee recommendations in relation to noise 
complaints  

Ground 
operations 

• Produce a summary table of information clearly setting out baselines, targets and 
timescales for electricity consumption, fuel usage and carbon emissions reductions  

• Consider establishing a process to accurately measure fuel consumption by vehicle 
fleet to improve accuracy of carbon emissions figures from this source  

• Set out the source data and methodology used for calculating the carbon emissions 
figures in the policy  

Travel 
plan 

• Explore the potential for widening the scope of the car sharing database to include 
other employers on site  

• Share the travel plan, once approved, with other Airport tenants to encourage the 
take up of more sustainable travel by employers from across the Airport site  

Waste • Publish baselines for waste streams in green policy once established  
Water 
quality 

• Publish statement in green policy with regard to compliance with current standards 
• Include information on water usage in buildings in green policy  

 

3. Performance management –monitoring and review 
3.1 The next annual review will cover the period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2012 and will consider 

the progress made on implementing the recommendations from this review and any additional 
activity carried out in respect of the areas outlined in the Green Policy. 

Page 12



   
$2jc14h0q.doc Page 3 of 3 Last updated 01 July 2011 
 

Report author Contact officer:  Gill Morris, climate change & sustainability officer,                
gill.morris@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264229 

Appendices 1. Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy Second Annual Review 
2. Joint Airport Scrutiny Working Group, minutes of meeting, 20th June 

2011 
Background information 1. Gloucestershire Airport Ltd Green Policy Issue 2 

2. Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy Travel Plan 
 

Page 13



Page 14
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Page 1 of 8 

Report to Joint Airport Scrutiny Working Group 
Monday 20th June 2011 

 
Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy 

Second Annual Review 
 
 
Report authors:  Meyrick Brentnall, Principal Planner, Gloucester City Council 
   Gill Morris, Climate Change & Sustainability Officer, Cheltenham Borough Council 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
1.1. Gloucestershire Airport Green Policy was developed as a result of a condition placed on the 

approval of the business case for the Runway Safety Project (RSP).  The subsequent Policy 
was approved by both shareholding councils in April 2009 and included a commitment to 
review the progress made in implementing the Policy on an annual basis.  This second 
review covers the period 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011.   

 
2. SCOPE OF REVIEW REPORT 
2.1. This report reviews the progress made on implementing the recommendations of the first 

annual review, approved by the scrutiny committees of both shareholding councils in July 
2010, and the progress made on implementing other areas of activity set out in the Green 
Policy.  The scope of the report was agreed with Cllr Godwin, chair of the Joint Airport 
Scrutiny Working Group.   

 
2.2. The report is structured to reflect the different areas of activity set out in the Green Policy to 

ensure clarity in determining the progress made.  The committee recommendations from the 
first annual review are included within the relevant sections. 
 

2.3. The Airport Board has provided evidence of progress and officers from the shareholding 
councils have considered this evidence.  It is acknowledged that some work cannot begin 
until the RSP is implemented and, where this applies, this has been made clear.   

 
3. POLICY AREAS, EVIDENCE AND OFFICERS’ VIEW 
3.1. Overall framework 

 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Timescales to be identified for the 

implementation of measures 
(ii) Green Policy to be revised in light of the 

recommendations (copy to be provided) 

(i) Annually 
(ii) Green policy revised and copy provided 

 
3.1.1. Officers’ view:  the green policy has been updated with sections outlining the progress that 

has been made within the different policy areas and contains new appendices relating to 
fleet fuel usage, electricity consumption and the green travel plan.  Carbon emissions figures 
are also quoted, although it is not clear how these have been arrived at.  Timescales for 
implementation of measures have not been articulated in the revised green policy; however, 
travel related targets and timescales are included in the travel plan.   The revised policy has 
not yet been published on the Airport’s website.   
 

3.1.2. Recommendations: 
• For clarity, include an appendix which draws together all baselines, targets and 

timescales for different strands of work (ref 3.1.1) 
• Publish updated policy on website (ref 3.1.1) 

 
 

Page 15



Page 2 of 8 

3.2. Working with stakeholders / community relations / consultative committee 
 

Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Formalise discussion of environmental issues by 

including as a standing item on meeting 
agendas for both the Airport Board and 
Consultative Committee in line with Green Policy 
 

(i) Implemented immediately – environmental issues 
are a standing agenda item on all Board, 
Consultative Committee and Management 
meetings 

 
3.2.1. Additional evidence 

• The latest building survey has shown that there has been a marked improvement in 
energy awareness.  A new poster campaign will be initiated during March to attempt to 
reduce consumption further. 

• Wilksch Airmotive, a manufacturer of diesel engines for aircraft, are investigating the 
idea of using their test rig to generate electricity and feed it back into the grid, via a 200A 
cable that crosses their site to an adjacent hanger.  They have been given the contact 
details of an energy consultant (Sustainable Direction) in order to drive this forward. 

• Fund raising events, including a charity car event and ‘Wear It Pink’ day.  Number of 
presentations and tours for groups including local schools, scouts/beavers, WI, Young 
Farmers and prizes given for charity events.  Hosted Breakfast Club event, attended 
several networking events, including B2B 2010 event and careers event at Chosen Hill 
School.  Hosted several work experience students and Fly In arranged for May for 
wounded and handicapped service personnel. 

• Consultative committee always attended by at least one executive and non-executive 
director. 
 

3.2.2. Officers’ view:  the Airport has met the committee recommendation.  A number of local 
parish councils hold seats on the consultative committee and this is now a forum through 
which concerns about environmental issues can be raised.  The Airport continues to engage 
with the local community on a regular basis, although not necessarily on green issues, and 
continues to engage with staff to raise awareness of environmental issues.   

 
3.3. Noise 

 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Publish location and numbers of noise 

complaints on website 
(ii) Begin building up a record of noise complaints  
(iii) Publish actions taken as a result of noise 

complaints on website 
 

(i) Ongoing as part of our website development 
(ii) This was already implemented and is an ongoing 

procedure.  All noise complaints are also reported 
to and published through the Consultative 
Committee 

(iii) Ongoing as part of our website development 
 
3.3.1. Additional evidence:  587 noise complaints were received between January and December 

2010; 255 of these were from Cheltenham and 232 from Bamfurlong Lane.  524 of the 
complaints were received from a small group of ‘regular’ complainants.  Noise abatement 
procedures reviewed, updated and published on website.  Airport Advisory Notices sent out 
on regular basis to all operators and tenants. 
 

3.3.2. Officers’ view:  the Airport has not yet met all the committee recommendations in relation to 
noise complaints.   
 

3.3.3. The total number of noise complaints has increased by 28% from the 2009 figure (458) and 
represents 0.8% of total aircraft movements compared with 0.6% in 2009.  89% of the 
complaints received were generated by a small group of regular complainants.  The trend 
over the year indicates that complaints increase through the first half of the year, peaking at 
111 complaints in August, and then decrease again.  This is probably not surprising as 
people open windows and spend more time outside as the weather gets warmer. 
 

Page 16



Page 3 of 8 

3.3.4. Numbers of complaints are published as part of consultative committee minutes, but these 
are not easy to find and it is difficult to see why this information cannot simply be transferred 
to the noise section of the website.  Action taken as a result of complaints is not publicly 
available; however, it should be noted that the consultative committee minutes for February 
2011 record a comment from the Down Hatherley representative that noise levels had 
reduced following a meeting with the Airport in November 2010. 
 

3.3.5. The green policy contains a commitment to set a benchmark for noise complaints based on 
2007/8 figures and to strive to deliver a year-on-year reduction, but this information has not 
been published. 
 

3.3.6. The Airport has been developing a comprehensive database of noise complaints over the 
past twelve months which, over time, will provide useful information, and they have been 
working hard to respond to individual noise complaints.  However, all this has taken place 
‘behind-the-scenes’.  If a more open approach was adopted, which provided the public with 
more information, the Airport could potentially reduce the number of formal complaints 
received and give the public a better understanding of what the Airport can do to respond to 
complaints.      
 

3.3.7. In particular, the noise section of the Airport’s website could be improved.  At present, it only 
covers how to make a complaint, but it could be expanded to provide the public with much 
more information.  For example, it could include information about the use of the Airport by 
military and emergency aircraft, especially out-of-hours, and could provide links to noise 
abatement procedures, advisory notices issued to airport users, numbers of noise 
complaints and useful websites etc. 
 

3.3.8. Whilst the majority of this information is already available in different sections of the website, 
there has hitherto been little consideration of how members of the public might access this 
information or even know what to look for.  The Airport now recognises this and all relevant 
information will be drawn together into the noise section of the website.       
 

3.3.9. Recommendations:   
• Publish year-on-year comparison of noise complaints against benchmarking data in 

green policy  (ref 3.3.5) 
• Draw together all relevant information into noise section of the website – this will also 

serve to fulfil the outstanding committee recommendations in relation to noise complaints 
(ref 3.3.8 and 3.3.4) 

 
3.4. Aircraft CO2 emissions 
3.4.1. The figures returned by the Airport are shown in the table below; these have been verified by 

an independent consultant.  
 

Fuel type CO2 emissions (tonnes) 
AVGAS sales 1,144 
Jet A1 burned 2,445 
TOTAL 3,589 

 
Note:  Jet A1 figure calculated using flights from 15th July to 15th August – determined to be the busiest 30-day 
period of the year – which is then aggregated up to a complete twelve month period.  

 
3.4.2. Officers’ view:  3,589 tonnes of CO2 is within the ceiling of 4,000 tonnes CO2 set down in the 

policy.  More detailed calculations, as set down in the policy, are not expected until an 
industry standard is published and there is no expectation that a carbon emissions reduction 
target will be set or interim months assessed until the runway safety project is completed.   

 

Page 17



Page 4 of 8 

3.5. Aircraft movements 
3.5.1. Evidence:  there were a total of 69,189 aircraft movements within the review period of which 

0.8% (537) of qualifying flights were outside the airport’s published opening hours.  Only 6 
movements were recorded between the hours of 2300-0600. 

 
3.5.2. Officers’ view:  aircraft movements are within the ceilings set by the policy, namely a total 

number of movements not exceeding 95,000, no more than 1.5% outside published opening 
hours and no more than 100 movements per calendar year to take place during night time 
hours.  All these figures exclude police, medical and other emergency-related flights. 
 

3.6. Air quality 
3.6.1. Evidence:  unable to monitor effectively due to the removal of the AQMS at Cheltenham.  

However, local councils’ own air quality monitoring does not identify Gloucestershire Airport 
as a singe source.  DEFRA also designate the levels of pollution in the South West as ‘low’. 
 

3.6.2. Officers’ view:  no comments; air quality was found not to be an issue in the first annual 
review of the policy. 

 
3.7. Ground operations 
 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Greater focus to be placed on reducing carbon 

emissions from ground operations 
(ii) Set of baselines to be established for carbon 

emissions from ground operations 
(iii) Investigate the use of renewable technologies 

as an alternative to the existing electric heating 
system 

(iv) Consider developing a ‘green champions’ 
network which includes tenants 
 

(i) The ongoing policy of replacing lighting and 
heating with energy efficient units is also moving 
forward with approximately 60% of the onsite 
units being replaced where appropriate. 
We have continued our programme of installing 
‘smart meters’ which will allow us to monitor 
electric usage more closely which in turn helps to 
identify peak areas.  These can then be targeted 
with measures to help reduce consumption 

(ii) Database being established from information 
gathered throughout the year 

(iii) Studies of PV panels indicate that this is the most 
efficient solution for renewable energy.  We 
continue to source a suitable supplier and product 
that is commensurate with our operations.  
However this is also subject to CAA approvals 
and appropriate safety case 

(iv) A Green Champions Network is gathering pace 
with many tenants and operators actively 
engaged with the Airport’s own green champion 

 
3.7.1. Additional evidence:  electricity costs down by 6%.  Vehicle and ground usage calculated 

and captured within the body of the updated policy. 
 

3.7.2. Officers’ view:  the Airport has met all the committee recommendations in whole or in part.  
Positive progress has been made over the review period and the Airport now has a much 
better understanding of its emissions from ground operations, but for clarity could improve 
the way in which this information is published.   
 

3.7.3. The revised policy contains a copy of the energy management action plan, put together with 
assistance from Severn Wye Energy Agency when the policy was developed.  All actions 
identified in the plan have been considered; some measures have been implemented and 
others, whilst deemed not currently viable, have been scheduled for review at a later stage. 
 

3.7.4. A detailed analysis of electricity consumption through 4x meters, representing approximately 
70% of recorded usage, has been undertaken and a comparison made of figures for 2009 
and 2010, which shows a 3.8% increase in electricity consumption.  However, this figure 
should be treated with some caution as consumption for 2010 is based on more accurate 
figures.  As such, figures for subsequent years will be more helpful in providing an 

Page 18



Page 5 of 8 

assessment of progress towards the 10% carbon reduction target.  This target was initially 
applied to the first two years of the policy, but is now presumably being measured using 
2009 as the baseline year, although this is not clearly stated.  
 

3.7.5. The policy also contains information about the Airport’s fleet of vehicles, including estimated 
mileage and fuel consumption per annum.  This has been converted to a carbon emissions 
figure, although this is not published separately. 
 

3.7.6. Overall carbon emissions figures for ground operations (electricity and fleet) have been 
published in the updated policy, but it is not clear how these figures have been calculated.  It 
is recommended that the source data and the methodology used for these calculations are 
clearly set out in the policy.  
 

3.7.7. Recommendations:   
• Produce a summary table of information clearly setting out baselines, targets and 

timescales for electricity consumption, fuel usage and carbon emissions reductions (ref 
3.7.2)    

• Consider establishing a process to accurately measure fuel consumption by vehicle fleet 
to improve accuracy of carbon emissions figures from this source (ref 3.7.5) 

• Set out the source data and methodology used for calculating the carbon emissions 
figures in the policy (ref 3.7.6) 

 
3.8. Green travel plan 
 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Continue focus on employee travel 
(ii) Explore possibility of rewarding cycling and car 

sharing 
(iii) Explore the possibility of engaging with other 

employers on site to develop a joint plan, using 
identified shortage of car parking spaces as an 
opportunity to promote this  

(iv) Formal green travel plan to be developed before 
the next annual review (copy to be provided) 
 

(i) Analysis of the staff home location survey is 
complete and the results are being analysed as 
part of the ongoing scheme to reduce staff vehicle 
usage 

(ii) Cycle to work scheme in its final stages of 
implementation; car sharing is working as a result 
of roster changes 

(iii) Stagecoach has been approached to route a bus 
through the airport at peak periods.  Despite our 
best efforts, including direct approach from the 
Board, Stagecoach is not prepared to reroute a 
bus without substantial investment from the 
Airport 

(iv) Draft travel plan developed and copy provided  
 
3.8.1. Additional evidence:  cycle to work scheme has entered its final stage and we are hoping to 

sign up many of those who have expressed an interest.  The travel plan has been 
completed, subject to approval. 

 
3.8.2. Officers’ view:  the Airport has met the recommendation to develop a formal travel plan, 

which focuses on employee travel and the plan has been published on the Airport’s website.  
The Airport employs 50 staff; 43 participated in a staff travel survey which showed that 
nearly 25% already cycle, use public transport or car share.  The travel plan sets targets and 
timescales for walking, cycling, using public transport and car sharing and for increasing 
business journeys made by public transport.  Some of the incentives being offered include 
complimentary umbrellas, wet weather gear, guaranteed ride home and shower and 
changing facilities.   
 

3.8.3. Schemes under consideration include Cycle to Work and offering discounted travel or 
season ticket loans for public transport.  There are also plans for a car sharing database and 
the provision of dedicated car sharing parking spaces.  The Airport could consider widening 
the car sharing database to include other employers on the site to provide more options for 
its own staff as well as others.     

 

Page 19



Page 6 of 8 

3.8.4. The Airport has made good progress in identifying actions to encourage staff to travel to 
work by more sustainable means and the commitment to undertake an annual staff travel 
survey as part of the plan review will demonstrate how successful this has been.  Once 
approved, the travel plan could usefully be shared with other Airport tenants as an example 
of encouraging more sustainable travel. 

 
3.8.5. Recommendations:   

• Explore the potential for widening the scope of the car sharing database to include other 
employers on site. (ref 3.8.3) 

• Share the travel plan, once approved, with other Airport tenants to encourage the take 
up of more sustainable travel by employers from across the Airport site (ref 3.8.4)  

 
3.9. Waste 
 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Regularise system for recycling including better 

record keeping 
(ii) Set of baselines to be established for waste 
 

(i) Since the start of the New Year we have recycled 
approximately 250kg of paper and cardboard and 
4kg of plastic.  We are currently looking at our oil 
and filter recycling procedures with the aim of 
making them more efficient and economical 

(ii) Primary waste baselines are being established 
 
3.9.1. Additional evidence:  testing of a new single phase pump continues at the sewerage works 

in preparation of changing over the system in Spring 2011.  So far results have proved 
encouraging.  The programme of recording and monitoring the monthly usage of water on 
the site is beginning to have an effect.  We are now in a position to make direct comparisons 
with previous years which allows us to implement savings where required. 

 
3.9.2. Officers’ view:  the Airport is working towards meeting the committee’s recommendation to 

establish primary baselines for waste and has begun weighing waste streams monthly. This 
information will be included in the next iteration of the green policy.  The system for record 
keeping has not been seen; however the Airport is clearly recording recycling rates.     
 

3.9.3. Recommendation:  publish baselines for waste streams in green policy once established. 
(ref 3.9.2) 
 

3.10. Water quality 
 
Committee recommendation Airport Board response 
(i) Publish annual monitoring report in line with 

Green Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(i) The programme of recording and monitoring 
monthly use of electricity and water on the site is 
beginning to have an effect.  We are now in a 
position to make direct comparisons with previous 
years which will allow us to implement savings 
where required.  Monthly monitoring reports by 
the Environment Agency are being collated to 
produce an annual report 

 
3.10.1. Additional evidence:  Environment Agency reports confirm that the water quality is well within 

the consent limits set. 
 
3.10.2. Officers’ view:  the committee recommendation to publish an annual water quality monitoring 

report has not been met; however, all the required information is contained in Environment 
Agency reports received monthly and water quality continues to be within the consent limits.  
It has been agreed that, as the Airport has thus far always remained compliant with current 
standards, a statement in the green policy will suffice.  Any future breaches of the standard 
will similarly be included. 
 

Page 20



Page 7 of 8 

3.10.3. The evidence suggests that water usage in Airport buildings is now being monitored, but 
figures are not included in the updated green policy.  This should be included as a baseline 
against which to assess savings from improvement measures.   

 
3.10.4. Recommendations: 

• publish statement in green policy with regard to compliance with current standards (ref 
3.10.2) 

• include information on water usage in buildings in green policy (ref 3.10.3) 
 
3.11. Landscape and ecology 
3.11.1. Improvements have been designed as part of the overall runway safety project and will be 

implemented before, during and after the project. 
 

3.11.2. Officer view:  no comments; improvements are linked to the runway safety project which has 
not yet been implemented. 

 
4. CONCLUSION 
4.1. The Airport has met the majority of committee recommendations set down as a result of the 

first annual review and has made progress in most areas of activity.   
 

4.2. It has remained within the ceilings set by the policy for aircraft carbon emissions, aircraft 
movements and out-of-hours flying.  Positive progress has been made on understanding 
carbon emissions from ground operations and measures are now being put in place.  Waste 
streams are also now being recorded and monitored.  The Airport also now has a formal 
green travel plan, subject to approval, which was a key committee recommendation. 
 

4.3. The evidence suggests that a number of baselines, targets and timescales have now been 
set, but they are not easily found and the policy would benefit from this information being 
summarised in one place.   
 

4.4. Noise complaints remain an issue, but it is hoped that by increasing the transparency with 
which such complaints are handled and providing the public with better information, the 
process can be managed more effectively and the Airport will be able to demonstrate a 
reduction in noise nuisance.   
 

4.5. Overall the Airport has made positive progress in many areas of activity and, having 
established baselines from which to work, is now in a good position to implement further 
measures to deliver improvements. 
 

5. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Overall policy • For clarity, include an appendix which draws together all baselines, targets and 

timescales for different strands of work (3.1.1) 
• Publish updated policy on website (ref 3.1.1) 

Noise • Publish year-on-year comparison of noise complaints against benchmarking data in 
green policy (ref 3.3.5) 

• Draw together all relevant information into noise section of the website – this will also 
serve to fulfil the outstanding committee recommendations in relation to noise 
complaints (ref 3.3.8 and 3.3.4) 

Ground 
operations 

• Produce a summary table of information clearly setting out baselines, targets and 
timescales for electricity consumption, fuel usage and carbon emissions reductions 
(ref 3.7.2)    

• Consider establishing a process to accurately measure fuel consumption by vehicle 
fleet to improve accuracy of carbon emissions figures from this source (ref 3.7.5) 

• Set out the source data and methodology used for calculating the carbon emissions 
figures in the policy (ref 3.7.6) 

Travel plan • Explore the potential for widening the scope of the car sharing database to include 

Page 21



Page 8 of 8 

other employers on site (ref 3.8.3) 
• Share the travel plan, once approved, with other Airport tenants to encourage the 

take up of more sustainable travel by employers from across the Airport site (ref 
3.8.4) 

Waste • Publish baselines for waste streams in green policy once established (ref 3.9.2) 
Water quality • Publish statement in green policy with regard to compliance with current standards 

(ref 3.10.2) 
• Include information on water usage in buildings in green policy (ref 3.10.3) 

 
   

Page 22



Appendix 2 

1 

Joint Airport Scrutiny Working Group 
Minutes of meeting – 20 June 2011 
 
Present:  Councillors Godwin (Chair), Jordan, Wheeldon, Taylor and Witts 
  Officers – CBC – Pat Pratley (PP), Gill Morris (GM) 

Officers – GCC – Meyrick Brentnall (MB) 
Gloucestershire Airport Ltd (GAL) – Mark Ryan (MR) 

 
Apologies: GCC – Peter Gillett (PG) 
 
 Item Action by 
1. Apologies  
1.1 Apologies were made as above.  It was noted that Cllr Gill is no longer a 

Gloucester City Council member and a replacement will be needed for the 
working group. 

PG 

2. Minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2010  
2.1 The minutes were agreed with all matters dealt with in the review report.  
3. Summary of the draft report (circulated 16 June 2011)  
3.1 MB summarised the draft report.  The report followed the same structure as the 

first review report and considered how the committee recommendations from the 
first review had been taken forward together with other progress made between 
1st March 2010 and 31st March 2011.  MB drew members’ attention to the 
report’s conclusion, which summarised the progress made, and the table of 
recommendations for members’ approval. 

 

4. Member questions   
4.1 Cllr Godwin asked about the energy efficiency measures that had been 

considered, including renewables, and the targets contained in the policy, which 
had been considered too ambitious in the previous review report.  MB reported 
that GAL had investigated renewables and replacing the heating system, but 
both were currently unaffordable.  He also said that, although the targets were 
useful, it was more important to get the baselines right first. 

 

4.2 Cllr Wheeldon queried the accuracy of the baselines, emphasising the 
importance of getting these right in order to understand whether GAL is on 
target.  MB reported that GAL had been working on the baselines and were 
almost there, but he also emphasised that the process of establishing accurate 
baselines was inherently difficult. 

 

4.3 Cllr Witts asked whether the majority of noise complaints were still being 
received from a small group of regular complainants.  MB replied that this was 
still the case.  If the process was made clearer, however, and the public had 
access to more information, other potential complaints could be managed more 
effectively. 

 

4.4 Cllr Godwin asked whether any external comments had been received during 
the review period, particularly from Down Hatherley Parish Council, as a number 
had been submitted when the committee considered the first review report.  MB 
reported that the Parish Council had had meetings with GAL and a reduction in 
noise had been noted as a result.  He also stressed that noise was the most 
important issue for the community in terms of the green policy. 

 

5. GAL comments on the draft report  
5.1 MR began by thanking MB and GM for their advice, particularly in relation to 

noise issues, which GAL would implement going forward.  He then gave a 
 

MR 

Page 23



 

2 

response to some of the member questions above. 
5.2 MR reported that GAL had investigated installing photovoltaic panels, but there 

were difficulties with location (GAL does not own all the hangars) and cost.  
Wind power was not an option.  Ground source heat pumps, potentially the most 
practical renewable energy source, were very costly and the legal structure of 
GAL is such that it is an obstacle to obtaining funding.  It was noted that GAL 
may be able to participate in the GCC PV Framework and MB agreed to send 
details. 

 
 
 
 

MB 

5.3 GAL is developing the baselines and is almost at the point where they can be 
published. 

 

5.4 MR acknowledged that noise was the biggest problem area.  GAL had arranged 
a meeting between Down Hatherley Parish Council and a number of the 
operators; this had worked well and complaints were down.  In terms of the 
website, he acknowledged GAL had become too technical in tackling the noise 
issue and there were some simple measures that could improve the process. 

 
 
 

MR 
5.5 In response to a query from Cllr Wheeldon he explained that the travel plan had 

been developed using a government framework and it had been pleasing to 
discover that employees were already doing a lot. 

 

5.6 Cllr Godwin asked whether there were particular issues GAL was struggling with.  
MR replied that renewable energy was one; however, noise was the biggest 
issue and complete satisfaction will never be achieved.  Comparison of noise 
issues with other similar size airports is difficult as surrounding environs are 
different, but GAL had received a useful powerpoint presentation from 
Oxfordshire Airport. 

 

5.7 Cllr Wheeldon asked whether the CAA was promoting the retrofitting of 
silencers.  MR reported that the CAA was not overly supportive.  It currently 
costs in the region of £6k to have a silencer fitted, largely because of the 
certification process, and this is an obstacle to uptake. 

 

6. Runway Safety Project (RSP)  
6.1 Cllr Jordan asked when it would be possible to look at other targets, which were 

dependent on the RSP.  MR replied that some could be considered once the 
runway length was operational.  However, it may take a year or two before the 
ecological targets can be considered as the vegetation will need time to 
establish.   

 
MR/GM/MB 

6.2 In response to a query from Cllr Godwin MR reported that all agreements were 
now in place, contracts had been awarded and the contractors were on site.  
The aim is to complete the physical work in twelve months.  The technical 
certification process following this work is likely to take a further six months. 

 

6.3 Cllr Witts asked whether the cost of fuel had curtailed flights.  MR confirmed that 
the number of leisure flights was down quite considerably, but business flights 
were considerably up, so the drop in the total number of flights was offset by the 
higher financial value.  This is also the market GAL intends to focus on. 

 

6.4 PP asked the working group if it would be useful to arrange a progress meeting 
for the RSP.  It was agreed a meeting would be arranged towards the end of the 
project and this would held at the Airport to enable members to view progress. 

 
PP 

7. Any other business  
7.1 No other business was raised.  
8. Approval of review report  
8.1 The working group approved the review report.  
8.2 Cllr Godwin thanked MB and GM for their work to produce the report. All to note 
 

Page 24



Environment overview and scrutiny committee, 
13th July 2011 

 Towards a commissioning strategy for the built 
environment - update report. Version 1 

 Page 1 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

13 July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built 

environment - update report 
1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 
1.1 At its meeting on 11 May, the Committee was updated on the work of the 

commissioning review for the built environment services.  The project team will be 
reporting progress to the cabinet on 26 July and a copy of the update report is 
attached. 

2. Summary of the Issue  
2.1 The report sets out the findings to date and seeks agreement to consult, both 

internally and externally, on the preliminary findings and in particular the outcomes for 
Built Environment in the future. The intention would be to take a final report to cabinet 
in September setting out the results from the consultation with stakeholders, 
providers and the customers and presenting the next steps, a copy of which would be 
presented to this committee on 14 September. 

3. Summary of evidence/information 
3.1 The attached report gives members the evidence gathered to date including 

information on current service provision, costs, benchmarking and an update on the 
areas of analysis being undertaken. 

4. Next Steps  
4.1 The Committee is asked to comment on the attached and consider what else if 

anything they would want the working group to cover to satisfy themselves on 
recommending a strategic direction for the commissioning the built environment. 
Appendices Appendix 1 – Cabinet update report 
Contact Officer Jane Griffiths, Director of Commissioning, 01242 

264126, jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Accountability Councillor John Rawson 
Scrutiny Function Environment O&S 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 25



Page 26
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

1 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment 
 

Update report 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The council has agreed to become a commissioning council by April 2012 and has commenced a 

series of reviews which will enable it to achieve this ambition.  The review of its built environment 
services started earlier this year and a member working group was established to support the 
process. 

 
1.2 This report provides an update on the work to date and the key findings and sets out what further 

work needs to be undertaken prior to consideration of a report to Cabinet at the end of September 
in time, to inform the 2012/13 budget and corporate strategy. 

 
1.3 The services which are within the scope of the review are: 

� Strategic land use 
� Development management 
� Building control 
� Urban design 
� Heritage and conservation 

 
2. Context 
 
2.1 Nationally, the Government has set out its ambitions for the built environment in the Localism Bill, 

which proposes a number of changes to the planning regime. The Bill supports the concept of the 
Big Society and encourages community empowerment, social action and the opening up of public 
services.  Although elements of the Bill, which is proceeding through Parliament, may change, the 
Council still needs to be alert to the direction of the Bill and to be in a position to respond to the 
proposals once passed by Parliament.  The Government has also established a framework for 
Local Enterprise Partnerships which have a remit which includes economic development and 
strategic transport. 

 
2.2 Locally, the review will also have regard to the context set by the Cheltenham Development Task 

Force, which was established by the Council and key partners.  It has an ambition (underpinned by 
supplementary planning guidance) to “support the town’s economic strength and sustainable 
development by revitalising key streets and spaces to the highest attainable quality for the benefit of 
the whole community”.  The Council needs to ensure that the outcomes of the review are able to 
support this ambition both directly and indirectly. 

 
2.3 Cheltenham has a unique heritage which underpins its economic prosperity and which can provide 

the basis for a design code for future development. In developing the outcomes for the built 
environment this opportunity needs to be exploited and this will be explored with the help of English 
Heritage (see section 9).   

 
2.4 The Council is already working in partnership with Tewkesbury Borough and Gloucester City 

Councils on the development of a Joint Core Strategy for the area and this is also helping to set the 
broader strategic framework for the built environment. 

 

Page 27



Appendix 1 

2 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

2.5 The council also has a funding gap identified as set out in its medium term financial strategy and 
savings will need to be identified to close this gap.  Councillors have explicitly indicated that they 
wish to see front-line services protected so we need to think innovatively about how we can secure 
quality outcomes at a reduced net cost to council tax payers. Commissioning provides a framework 
in which to have these discussions with officers, elected members, customers and stakeholders.  

 
3. Methodology 
 
3.1 The review is being undertaken by the Commissioning Division supported by those within the 

services in scope.  A project team has been established chaired by the Executive Director and 
includes the Cabinet Member for Built Environment.  The review is supported by a member working 
group chaired by the Cabinet Member and comprises: 

 Councillor John Rawson 
 Councillor Tim Cooper 
 Councillor Barbara Driver 
 Councillor Jacky Fletcher 
 Councillor Bernard Fisher 
 Councillor Peter Jefferies 
 Councillor Helena McCloskey 
 
 The project team meets every two weeks and the member working group has met three times since 

it was established. 
 
3.2 The review is using the commissioning methodology (analysis, plan, procure and review) and is 

currently in the first stage i.e. analysis.  Set out below is a summary of the work undertaken to date. 
 
 
4. Future proofing 
 
4.1 Officers from the services within scope plus other officers from the commissioning division 

undertook a future proofing exercise at the start of the review.  This enabled officers to think about 
the strategic context in which they deliver their services and what the future may hold in terms of 
service delivery.  It allowed them to identify some of the risks and uncertainties and also the 
opportunities that may arise from the proposed changes at the national level.  They recognised that 
however services were delivered there needed to be a fair and transparent process which 
underpins our place-shaping role, and that any future service delivery needs to be flexible, cost 
efficient and to able to exploit new technology. 

 
5. Needs analysis 
 
5.1 The Cheltenham Strategic Partnership has prepared a “needs analysis” for the area. It is based on 

evidence drawn from a range of sources including the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments 
undertaken at a county level but also drawing on more locally based information provided by a 
range of stakeholders and partners. 

 
5.2 The review has taken this information and developed its own needs assessment for the built 

environment, a copy of which has been made available to members.   The member working group 
considered the analysis and requested that it be updated to reflect the needs of Cheltenham’s 
diverse communities and neighbourhoods either through their physical characteristics (especially 
identified in the 19 neighbourhood character appraisals and management plans) or though their 
demographic profiles, particularly in relation to people living in the town centre.  The working group 
is of the view that when commissioning services, a “one-size-fits-all-approach” may not be 
appropriate for some areas of the borough. 

Page 28



Appendix 1 

3 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

 
5.3 The needs analysis sets out key messages in relation to the economy, housing, green space, 

climate change, demography, health and deprivation.  A spatial planning response to these issues 
is being addressed through the development of the Joint Core Strategy, but the review needs to 
consider how the identified needs will inform the outcomes that we wish to commission. 

 
6. Developing outcomes 
 
6.1 Developing outcomes is the critical phase of any commissioning exercise as they answer the 

question “what do we want our services to achieve”.  Experience from the leisure and culture 
review, has enabled a more rigorous approach to developing outcomes: 
• Do the outcomes describe an end result / the difference we will make? 
• Do the outcomes relate to the needs we have identified? 
• Are the outcomes easily understood by elected members and members of the public? 
• Do the outcomes feel like an intrinsic part of what Cheltenham Borough Council does? 

 
6.2 Using this framework, the project group developed an initial set of outcomes based on the needs 

and the current corporate strategy and these were tested with the member working group. Debating 
the fundamentals of “what do we want our built environment services to achieve” has enabled 
members to have healthy and innovative discussions and they have inputted a further range of 
outcomes that they would wish to see delivered, focusing on the economy, good design and flexible 
use of space, heritage and sustainability. In discussing outcomes they have also identified some of 
the underlying principles that they would want to see built into any service provision. 

 
6.3 The work to develop a final set of outcomes is still being finalised, and the working draft of the 

outcomes is included as appendix A.  The member working group is meeting on 13 July and will be 
giving further consideration to the outcomes before we then test them more widely with a range of 
stakeholders and the community. 

 
6.4 The review also needs to make the necessary linkages with other commissioning reviews and 

outcomes, as the built environment services have the ability to wider health and social outcomes. 
 
7. Current service delivery 
 
7.1 There are a number of services within the scope of the review but it is also obvious that defining 

outcomes for these services will also impact on other services eg parks and gardens, housing, 
economic development and car parking.  However these areas have not been considered as part of 
this review in order to keep the review process to a manageable scale. 

 
7.1.0 Building control 
 
7.1.1 Building Control seeks to achieve minimum standards of construction to ensure the health and 

safety of people in or around buildings and is also increasingly concerned with energy conservation 
and with access and facilities for disabled people. It does have an enforcement requirement and 
this can result in action through the courts.  The Building Regulations are a statutory framework 
against which the service provides advice and support to customers about safe, secure and 
comfortable buildings and so enforcement is generally considered to be a ‘last resort’. 

 
7.1.2 Tasks which the Building Control team undertake include: 

• Assisting customers so that their projects are successfully completed and comply with the 
requirements of the Building Regulations; 

• Checking applications for compliance with the Building Regulations; 
• Site inspections to check for compliance with the Building Regulations; 

Page 29



Appendix 1 

4 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

• Enforcement action relating to the Building Regulations; 
• Dealing with dangerous structures; 
• Providing help and advice on access for all people to building - inclusive design; 
• Helping colleagues in the Development Management team (Planning); 
• Street naming and numbering; 
• Access audits; 
• Assisting with the resolution of dangerous structures and related incidents. 

 
7.1.3 The Building Control service operates in a competitive market and there are numerous private sector 

suppliers of services. Building Control is required by government guidance to breakeven on fee 
income. 

 
7.1.4 There are a total of 14 full-time equivalent (FTE) staff comprising. 3 support officers, 10 site 

inspection and 1 manager. 
 
7.1.5 Joint working with Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) has been operational since November 2009 

through a Section 101 agreement where we deliver the services to TBC. This action was aimed at 
providing a resilient service which could be developed to work effectively within a competitive 
environment. There was also assessed to be a small financial benefit resulting from the loss of one 
manager and one support team member.  

 
7.2 Strategic land use 
 
7.2.1 The work of this team provides the strategic framework within which spatial planning related to the 

community strategy outcomes can be delivered.  This requires effective engagement both internally 
with officers and elected members and externally with statutory stakeholders and the wider public.  
The Localism Bill will require a review of engagement and the way in which services are delivered; 
particularly in respect of activities undertaken with parish councils and community groups.  The 
work of the team can be broken down across three strands which are set out below: 

 
Delivering the statutory 
development plan for 
Cheltenham 

Monitoring and research Stakeholder engagement 

Preparation and implementation 
of the Cheltenham Borough Local 
Plan and Cheltenham's Local 
Development Framework. 
 

Land use monitoring. 
 

Working with stakeholders and 
organisations across Cheltenham 
Borough in disseminating planning 
policies/advice/best practice. 
 

Support preparation and 
management of Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 
Joint Core Strategy. 
 

Preparing LDF annual 
monitoring report. 

Working with divisions across the 
Council to input into spatial planning. 
 

Delivering Strategic 
Environmental Assessment 
(SEA). 

Undertaking residential land 
availability and capacity 
studies. 
 

Working through the local strategic 
partnership to ensure the Sustainable 
Community Strategy and LDF are co-
ordinated and deliverable. 

Providing advice and responding 
to planning applications and 
appeals – both in Cheltenham 
and neighbouring authorities 
where development has 
implications for Cheltenham. 
 

Undertaking 
projects/research to support 
the strategic planning 
function. 

Working with neighbouring local 
authorities. 

Responding to national planning 
policies and proposals. 

 Working with parish councils. 

Page 30



Appendix 1 

5 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

 
7.2.2 There are 4.5 FTE staff in the team.  One of these posts is a fixed term post shared by Cheltenham, 

Gloucester & Tewkesbury to support the JCS programme and there is a shared planning manager 
(0.5 of FTE) dedicated to supporting Tewkesbury Borough planning service. 

 
7.2.3 Through the Joint Core Strategy team, officers work across all three councils on a reciprocal basis.  

Currently one of the members of the team is on maternity leave and the development management 
team have seconded a member of their staff to support the JCS. 

 
7.3 Development Management 

 
7.3.1 The team manages the development of land and buildings within the borough, carrying out the 

Council’s statutory obligations as set out in the legislative framework (Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004). The objective is for development in the borough to achieve the aims and 
aspirations of national and local policy and create a better environment for Cheltenham, its 
inhabitants, workers and visitors. 

 
7.3.2 The team assesses and determines a variety of proposals including applications for: planning 

permission (both building works and change of use); listed building and conservation area consent; 
advertisement consent; and certificates of lawful use or development. 

 
7.3.3 The work can be broken down across two work strands as set out in the table below: 
 

The application process  
 

Other services and activities 
 

Validation – acknowledge application, check 
relevant information provided and request 
any additional information needed. 
Consultation - inform interested parties, 
neighbours, consultees and invite comments 
on proposal. 
Negotiation – hold discussions with 
applicant and other interested parties to steer 
proposal successfully through planning 
process. Identify flaws and opportunities for 
improvement. 
Determination – most applications are 
delegated to officers, but planning committee 
determines contentious schemes. 
 

Duty planning officer – provides advice to 
anyone who contacts the planning 
department (in person, email, phone). 
Pre-application discussions – with 
applicants ranging from private individuals to 
large corporations (chargeable and non-
chargeable). 
Post-decision work – appeals, amendments 
to proposals, monitoring of compliance with 
conditions and investigating and enforcing 
breaches of planning control. 
Councillor enquiries – work closely with 
members to help with their case work. 

 
 

 
7.3.4 There are a total of 16.5 FTE staff comprising a manager, 9.5 FTE planning/enforcement, 5 FTE 

support officers and an apprentice.  As outlined above one FTE planner is currently seconded to 
planning policy on JCS. 

 
7.3.5 Key development management performance data 

Indicator result for (Q4 2010) Previous quarter 
% of apps decided within 8 weeks 88% (245 of 278) 84% (283 of 337) 
% of major apps decided in 13 weeks 66.67% (4 of 6) (Target – 60%) 66.67% (4 of 6) 
% of minor apps decided in 8 weeks 84.62% (33 of 39) (Target – 

65%) 
61.40% (35 of 57) 

% of other apps decided in 8 weeks 90.13% (210 of 233) (Target 
80%) 

90.51% (248 of 274) 
% of delegated decisions 91.67% (264 of 288) 92% (320 of 349) 

Page 31



Appendix 1 

6 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

7.4 Urban Design  
 
7.4.1 The Urban Design Team consists of professionals in urban design, heritage, arboriculture and 

landscape architecture. They deal with projects and cases both proactively and reactively. The 
focus ranges from strategic (policy development, cross boundary issues) to detailed (building 
construction details, planting schedules, tree health, street design).  

 
7.4.2 The team deals with a range of partners and customers – both internal and external – officers and 

elected members; central government, county and district councils; developers, property owners, 
members of the public, interest groups etc. Much of the work is now focussed on working with local 
community groups interested in improving or maintaining their environments (streets, parks, urban 
spaces, heritage assets, trees etc) which is in tune with the Government’s thinking on the Big 
Society but is resource intensive.  The other major work strand is support for the Cheltenham 
Development Task Force. 

 
7.4.3 The work can be broken down between two different work streams as set out below: 
 

 
The team is made up of a team manager, 2 FTE heritage officers, one landscape architect and 2 
trees officers. 

 
 

Reactive work  
 

Proactive work 
o Lead case officers for listed building 

consent, tree preservation orders and 
conservation area tree applications. 

o Work with Development Management (and 
applicants) on planning and related 
applications, pre-application, enforcement,  
s.215, compliance, appeals & court cases 
(expert witness) & Planning Committee. 

o Best practice, design advice and project 
support on traffic management, street 
design, maintenance and asset 
management to the Integrated Transport 
team, GCC and Gloucestershire Highways. 

o The tree team manage CBC & CBH tree 
assets (3-yearly conditions survey, planting, 
remedial work, contract management etc) 
and management of tree response in 
adverse weather, accidents, damage to 
buildings etc.  

o The Heritage team advises Property, Parks 
& client divisions (listed buildings, 
registered parks etc). 

o Support & advise Cheltenham Development 
Task Force on planning, urban design, 
landscape and heritage issues. 

o Support policy work on the joint core 
strategy. 

o Advise developers, owners & prospective 
purchasers on responsibilities etc regarding 
trees & historic buildings. 

 

o Prepare & adopt supplementary planning 
documents, development briefs, concept 
statements, conservation area character 
appraisals etc. 

o Heritage organises Heritage Open Days, 
annual review of Local Index & instigate 
repairs and s.215 notices. 

o Project design & implementation eg Civic 
Pride, street/space enhancement, public 
art, heritage repairs etc. 

o Professional, design, funding & project 
management advice on community 
projects eg DIY Streets, Jenner Gardens.  

o Presentations to the public, interest 
groups, members & officers on tree, 
heritage & urban design issues. 

o Work with University of Gloucestershire, 
Festivals and education work. 

 

Page 32



Appendix 1 

7 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

 
8. Other providers and market development 
 
8.1 The review team has started to consider what other delivery models are available to the Council.  A 

paper was prepared for the member working group setting out case studies.  Further work is 
required but it appears that there are examples elsewhere in the country where some of the 
services in scope have been outsourced, where decision making has been devolved to other public 
sector bodies such as parish councils, and of course there are examples of shared-service delivery. 

 
8.2 Some elements of the work could be undertaken by the voluntary and community sector and an 

initial conversation has been undertaken with the Gloucestershire Rural Community Council which 
currently supports the development of parish councils in respect of neighbourhood planning.  
Depending how the Localism Bill progresses the GRCC sees an opportunity to play a part in helping 
empower local communities.   

 
8.3 The Council also works with other groups such as the Civic Society and the Architects’ Panel and 

there is an opportunity to explore with them how they may help in the delivery of the Council’s 
outcomes. 

 
8.4 Work is ongoing to explore with other Councils the reasons why they decided to outsource their 

services and what benefits it has derived.  It will also be useful to explore with them how they 
propose to accommodate changes to planning legislation as set out in the Localism Bill and how 
they will address the local setting of planning fees if they are tied to a contract with an external 
provider. 

 
8.5 Discussions will also need to be held with parish councils about their appetite to play a greater role 

in the planning process although as previously identified by the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and by the member working group, not all of the borough is covered by parish councils.  
It is proposed that the C5 group, which comprise the chairs of each of the parishes will be updated 
about the review and discuss how we might engage further with individual parish councils. 

 
8.6 In terms of existing shared-service provision we clearly cannot consider any changes without fully 

engaging with Tewkesbury Borough Council and Gloucester City who are our partner in delivery of 
some of the services.  

 
8.7 There is also an opportunity as part of this review to explore with Gloucestershire County Council 

whether there are ways in which we could be commissioned to deliver some of their services or 
whether there are opportunities to commission them to undertake certain aspects of service delivery 
for us.  The relevant commissioning director at the County Council has already been alerted to the 
review and we have already shared some of the background information with him. Some 
consideration has also been given as to whether sharing with other councils is an option which 
could be explored. 

 
8.8 The project team has also explored whether there is an opportunity to consider a trading company 

model for some of the services under scope.  At the current time given other capacity issues for 
OneLegal, Finance and HR the project group is of the view that consideration of such alternative 
models is probably not achievable at this time, but should be considered at a later date and built 
into future business plans.  This has yet to be tested with the member group and will be dealt with in 
more detail when the detailed report is presented to Cabinet in September. 

 

Page 33



Appendix 1 

8 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

9. English Heritage 
 
9.1 The Council took the opportunity to work with English Heritage on the review and have secured a 

small sum of funding from them as part of a wider national review programme. The aim is for them 
to support us with the review particularly in relation to the challenges and opportunities from having 
a large conservation area, a significant number of listed buildings and a local interest list.  An initial 
meeting has been held with one of their officers who has agreed to act as a critical friend on the 
review.  Funding is likely to be used to support a number of facilitated sessions with members, 
officers, stakeholders and listed building applicants drawing upon where conservation and heritage 
has helped to deliver better outcomes and what lessons can be learnt from this.   

 
9.2 English Heritage is aware that many councils are looking to reduce their spending in this area or 

indeed explore different delivery models and are keen therefore for us to share the learning from 
our review with others.  The officer from English Heritage has also provided some useful feedback 
on the way in which we are defining outcomes and how these will be used to set service levels in 
future. 

 
10. Benchmarking 
 
10.1 Some of the services in scope have undertaken a benchmarking exercise co-ordinated through the 

Planning Advisory Service and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  
The purpose of the benchmarking exercise is to use the information to compare performance and 
costs with peers and to support more effective service improvement plans.   

 
10.2 Along with 97 other councils, CBC submitted dated on its activity, income and costs to CIPFA which 

was based upon one month activity and then multiplied up for the year. CBC then selected 11 similar 
authorities to be within its benchmarking group to compare itself with: 

Cambridge City Council  
City of Lincoln Council  
Gloucester City Council  
Guildford Borough Council  
Harlow District Council  
Norwich City Council  
Oxford City Council  
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council  
Watford Borough Council  
Welwyn Hatfield  
Worcester City Council  

 
10.3 The data indicates that compared to the authorities within this group we have the second lowest 

costs for strategic planning, are in the second quartile (slightly better than average) for the costs of 
processing planning applications, the costs of compliance (enforcement) and the amount of income 
we generate from fees. We are in the third quartile (slightly worse than average) for the costs 
associated with “other” planning work.  

 
10.4 From other benchmarking data, we know that Cheltenham has the highest costs and spends the 

most hours on appeals compared with other authorities. However, the number of planning appeals 
is less than 2% of the total number of applications, and it is not clear whether this is high or low 
compared with other authorities.    The project team is now considering the reasons for this, as well 
as considering the percentage of appeals won/lost and the level of costs awarded against the 
Council.  In recognition of this as an issue, the corporate strategy includes a commitment to monitor 
the proportion of planning decisions upheld at appeal on a quarterly basis. 

 

Page 34



Appendix 1 

9 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

      Total Reported Costs £'k 
  

Authority Population 
Applics 
Received 
(High is 
good) 

Generic 
(Low is 
good) 

Strategic 
Planning 
(Low is 
good) 

Planning 
Applics 
(Low is 
good) 

Compliance 
& Delivery 
(Low is 
good) 

Other 
(Low is 
good) 

Application 
Fees 
(High is 
good) 

Oxford City Council 154 1444 341 567 651 132 259 665 
Cambridge City 
Council 123 1222 550 470 857 185 604 547 
Norwich City Council 136 1134 228 352 424 94 291 299 
Guildford Borough 
Council 136 1973 314 434 930 185 578 624 
Cheltenham  112 1534 218 182 553 78 286 495 
Gloucester City 
Council 115 926 329 135 267 87 135 315 
Welwyn Hatfield 108 1760 140 264 456 52 336 428 
Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council 107 1876 206 478 809 213 199 478 
Worcester City 
Council 94 765 182 504 370 77 205 266 
Watford Borough 
Council 81 880 280 449 829 137 243 275 
Harlow District 
Council 79 315 87 214 197 41 112 123 
Ranking within club 6 4 5 2 6 4 7 4 
Ranking within 50 
districts 22 19 34 24 32 17 41 22 
Key to ranking of 

quartile          
  Top 

quartile   
3rd 

quartile        
  2nd 

quartile   
Bottom 
quartile        

                  
 
10.5 The project team have reviewed the benchmarking data and feel that it is a useful starting point for 

considering future service delivery, but is mindful of not drawing too many conclusions from it due to 
different ways in which authorities will allocate costs and also the diverse nature and character of the 
built environment in each locality.  

 
10.6 The benchmarking exercise and further analysis however has highlighted some issues relating to 

support service recharges and the way that they are allocated across the range of built environment 
services.  The review will be giving further consideration to this, so that there is clarity on allocations 
and what this might mean for different delivery models. 

 
11.  Systems thinking 
 
11.1 As part of the commissioning review of the built environment services, the project team requested 

that a systems thinking review be undertaken to assess how efficient current processes are. The 
review team have started by considering the planning application process which has led to a number 
of suggestions for redesign which should result in a significant reduction in the time customers wait 
for their planning applications to be determined.  

 
11.2 The next areas for redesign are the committee process and appeals. The team are clear about what 

needs to happen for committee and we will be contacting all parties involved in this process shortly. 
The team is due to begin the work on the appeals process in July. 

 
11.3 The review group will keep an overview on the systems thinking work and report this back to cabinet 

in September.   
 
 
 

Page 35



Appendix 1 

10 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

12. Costs/savings and the MTFS 
 
12.1 The cost of the services in scope are set out below: 
 

 Development 
Control and 
Urban Design 

Heritage and 
Conservation 

Strategic 
Land Use 

Building 
Control 

Total 

Expenditure 1,052,100 104,000 212,000 709,000 2,077,100 
Income and recharge 
to other services 

462,900 0 94,500 659,100 1,216,500 
Net Cost of Service 589,200 104,000 117,500 49,900 860,600 

 
 

12.2 The Government has proposed that councils may be able to set their own planning fees to more 
closely reflect the costs of running the service.  The legislation and detail of how this might work is 
yet to be finalised and the review group has yet to have a discussion about how this might work in 
practice, but are alert to the need to reduce costs, so that the new charging regime does not impact 
adversely on applicants, whilst at the same time potentially enabling us to cover our costs which will 
contribute to reducing the MTFS funding gap.  

 
13 What next? 
 
13.1 Over the next couple of months, further work and analysis as set out in the above sections will be 

undertaken and which will be overseen by the member working group.  Specifically this will entail: 
• Engaging with local partners and stakeholders, including the voluntary and community sector, 

parish councils, Local Strategic Partnership, Business partnership, Civic Society, Architects’ 
Panel, developers and users of the services within scope to bring them up to date with the 
review so far on the direction of travel, priorities for further work and outcomes for consultation. 
This will include some specific workshops on conservation that will be funded through English 
Heritage funding; 

• Engaging with other providers to understand more fully the opportunities for different delivery 
models and where the market may need to be developed in the longer term. 

 
13.2 In addition it is proposed to undertake a consultation exercise with users of the service and key 

stakeholders to test the proposed outcomes and to gauge opinion of the services within scope.   
 
13.3 A report will be brought back to Council’s cabinet on 26 September setting out the findings from the 

above and a draft action plan. 
 

Page 36



Appendix 1 

11 of 11 
 

Cabinet 26th July 2011 
Towards a commissioning strategy for the built environment – update report 

 
P

age 37



Page 38
This page is intentionally left blank



   
 Page 1 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

13 July 2011 
Street Cleaning – Discussion Paper  

This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed. 

 
1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 

The Borough Council is implementing a number of service reviews as part of its 
approach to securing value for money combined with an efficient and effective service 
delivery. 

1.1 At the request of the Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee the division 
has undertaken a survey by way of a questionnaire to measure the level of 
satisfaction with Town Centre cleansing operations by the public and members of the 
Chamber of Commerce 

2. Summary of the Issue 
About the Service          The Borough Council has a statutory responsibility to keep public land for which it is 
responsible clear of litter, refuse and detritus. The service is provided by a team of 
twelve Street Cleaning Operatives who are supported by a high pressure, hot water 
jetting vehicle capable of removing graffiti and other noxious substances from the 
streets and pavements. The crews also cover the car parks and outlying shopping 
areas and in this are supported by 3 mechanical sweepers, a fourth mechanical 
sweeper covers the Council parks.   
Timing of Cleansing Operations 
 Weekdays 
06.30 – 09.00 all crews bar 61 and parks sweeper - Town Centre areas, shop fronts 
and car parks 
09.00 – all crews break off to outlying wards.  
09.00 – 14.00 – High profile bin emptying and litter picking carried out specialist crew 
member in the Town Centre.    
15.00 – 17.00 – 2 man crew empty bins and litter pick Town Centre. 
Weekends 

Agenda Item 9
Page 39



   
 Page 2 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

05.00 – 09.00 – 10 man crew supported by 2 mechanical sweepers empty litter bins, 
litter pick Town Centre, outlying shop fronts and car parks on both days. 
Saturday – 10.00 – 15.00 - 3 man crew empty litter bins and litter pick Town centre
       15.00 – 17.00 - 2 man crew empty litter bins and litter pick Town centre 
Sunday -    15.00- 17.00 -  2 man crew empty litter bins and litter pick Town centre 
Note the Town Centre area is designated as the Tee – the High Street between 
Ambrose Street and Bath Road and the Promenade up to the Queens Hotel and 
including shopping streets such as Winchcombe, Pittville and Regent Streets. 
During the early morning cleaning operation a larger area is covered including the 
Lower High Street, Clarence Street, parts of Bath road and offshoots. 

3. Summary of evidence/information 
Town Centre Cleaning Survey - June 2011 
To measure public opinion a questionnaire was produced and members of the public 
were canvassed in both the Regent and Beechwood Arcades over 4 days. The results 
are generally very good for visitors with comments such as ‘we come to Cheltenham 
to shop because it is so clean’. However some people who live in the borough used 
the opportunity to complain about changed refuse collections, charging for garden 
waste etc. and scores were lower presumably as they were unhappy about other 
aspects of the council. 
201 surveys were completed by the public and they were asked to score various 
aspects of Town Centre cleansing using the following criteria 
Answering on a scale of 1 – 5 where 1 is poor, 2 is below standard, 3 is acceptable, 4 
is good and 5 is excellent. 
The results are shown in Appendices 1 – 5 attached. 
Various comments were made and some of the headline comments were; 
Several comments about the Lower High Street not getting the same attention as the 
Town Centre 
Quite a few people pleased with Town Centre but would like to see more 
enforcement. 
People pleased power washing took place but would like to see more – the availability 
is limited as the machine also clears graffiti and cannot work in town when it is 
crowded with shoppers. 
Early morning clean very good but would like to see more cleaning in town later in the 
day. 
More bins at bus stops and more ash trays – we are already introducing this with new 
metal bins with ash trays fitted and new bins at the Promenade bus stops after the 
new paving is laid later in the year. 

Page 40



   
 Page 3 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Remove gum from pavements – this was stopped several years ago as a cost saving 
as an external contractor had to be hired – also issues with damaging paving 
grouting. 
Stop people feeding birds 
Some people said there were enough bins and regularly emptied some said there 
were not enough and needed emptying more – generally we do not have a problem 
with Town Centre bins. 
Side streets need more cleaning 
A lovely Town 
Better than Gloucester 
Much cleaner than Taunton 
A general concern over the mess left by night time economy 
Concerns over trade rubbish left on pavements 
More recycling facilities in Town Centre 
Car Parking too expensive 
Too much cleansing resource spent on deprived areas to detriment of ‘better’ areas 
Full comments are shown on the survey report - see Appendix 6  
The business survey was sent out to 800 members of the Chamber of Commerce via 
the Town Centre Managers (Martin Quantock) news letter. To date we have only 
received 2 replies and a further report will be prepared when more data is available. 

4. Next Steps  
Conclusion 
Generally it appears that most people are happy with the Town Centre Cleaning 
particularly first thing in the morning although there is criticism of the litter that collects 
later in the day. It appears that residents found it difficult to separate Town Centre 
Cleaning from other issues such as parking, refuse collection etc. Taking the view of 
just visitors to the town the average score for cleanliness in the Town Centre was 
3.98.      
To expand further cleaning to the Lower High Street and to extend any recycling 
facilities in the Town Centre would either take extra funding or Street Cleansing 
resource from other areas of the Borough.  
 
 

Page 41



   
 Page 4 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Appendices 1 to 6 – survey results 
Contact Officer John Rees – Environmental Maintenance 

Manager  
E Mail - john.rees@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Councillor Roger Whyborn 
Scrutiny Function Environmental 
 

Page 42



   
 Page 5 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Appendix 1a General Impression of Town Centre Average 
Score 3.55

1
5%

2
8%

3
28%

4
46%

5
13%

1 2 3 4 5  

Page 43



   
 Page 6 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Appendix 1b General impression of Town centre Average 
Score 3.55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1 2 3 4 5
Score

Re
sp

on
se

s

 

Page 44



   
 Page 7 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Appendix 2a Cleanliness of Cheltenham Town Centre Average 
Score 3.49

1
5%

2
12%

3
23%

4
48%

5
12%

1 2 3 4 5  
 

Page 45



   
 Page 8 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 2b Cleanliness of Cheltenham Town Centre Average 
Score 3.49

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1 2 3 4 5
score

Re
sp

on
se

s

 

Page 46



   
 Page 9 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 3a Number of Bins Available Average Score 3.35

1
2%

2
18%

3
34%

4
35%

5
11%

1 2 3 4 5  

Page 47



   
 Page 10 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 3b Number of Bins Available average Score 3.35

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1 2 3 4 5
Score

Re
sp

on
se

s

 

Page 48



   
 Page 11 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 4a Regulaity of Emptying of Bins Average Score 3.42

1
4%

2
13%

3
33%

4
38%

5
12%

1 2 3 4 5  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



   
 Page 12 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 4b Regularity of Emptying of Bins Average 3.42

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1 2 3 4 5
Score

Re
so

ns
es

 

Page 50



   
 Page 13 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

 

Appendix 5a Neighbourhood Cleaning / Litter Activities 
Average Score 3.01

1
13%

2
21%

3
22%

4
30%

5
14%

1 2 3 4 5  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



   
 Page 14 Last updated 01 July 2011 
  
 

Appendix 5b Neighourhood Cleaning / Litter Activities Average 
Score 3.01

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

1 2 3 4 5
Score

re
sp

on
es

e

 

Page 52



AP
PE

ND
IX

 6
Do

 yo
u 

liv
e i

n 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m?

If n
o, 

wh
ere

 is
 

yo
ur

 m
ain

 
res

ide
nc

e?

W
ha

t is
 yo

ur
 

ge
ne

ral
 

im
pr

es
sio

n 
of 

the
 to

wn
 

ce
ntr

e?

Ho
w 

do
 yo

u 
rat

e t
he

 
cle

an
lin

es
s 

of 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

tow
n 

ce
ntr

e?

Ho
w 

do
 

yo
u v

iew
 

the
 nu

mb
er 

of 
litt

er 
bin

s 
av

ail
ab

le?

W
ha

t is
 

yo
ur

 vi
ew

 
on

 th
e 

reg
ula

rit
y o

f 
the

 
em

pty
ing

 of
 

the
 bi

ns
?

If y
ou

 liv
e o

uts
ide

 th
e t

ow
n c

en
tre

 ho
w 

wo
uld

 
yo

u r
ate

 th
e l

itte
r c

oll
ec

tio
n a

nd
 st

ree
t 

cle
an

ing
 ac

tiv
itie

s i
n y

ou
r n

eig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d?

Ho
w 

wo
uld

 yo
u r

ate
 th

e 
co

un
cil

s r
es

po
ns

e i
n d

ea
lin

g 
wi

th 
fly

 tip
pin

g?

W
ha

t im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

wo
uld

 yo
u l

ike
 to

 
se

e i
n t

he
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e?

An
y o

the
r c

om
me

nts
?

1y
es

4
3

4
4

5
3Ar

ea
s o

the
r th

an
 th

e 
Pr

om
en

ad
e, 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

rat
ed

 1

2y
es

4
5

3
4

5n
ot 

se
en

 an
y

GO
LD

EN
 Va

lle
y a

rea
 2 

& P
.E.

W
 4 

W
ou

ld 
like

 to
 se

e l
itte

r p
ick

ed
 

up
 be

for
e t

he
y m

ow
 th

e g
ras

s

3y
es

4
2

3
2

Lik
e t

o s
ee

 re
nts

 de
du

ce
d s

o a
ll 

the
 sh

op
s a

re 
oc

cu
pie

d
Be

nh
all

 ne
ed

s a
 go

od
 cl

ea
n

4N
o

Te
wk

es
bu

ry
3

3
2

4
To

wn
 C

en
tre

 - n
ot 

sa
fe 

at 
nig

ht
5y

es
3

4
5

5
52

 (R
ed

din
g's

 Ar
ea

)
En

ou
gh

 bi
ns

 bu
t p

eo
ple

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 m
ad

e t
o u

se
 th

em
6y

es
1

0
4

4
Pe

op
le 

fin
ed

 fo
r d

rop
pin

g l
itte

r
I'd

 lik
e t

o s
ee

 lit
ter

 w
ard

en
s p

aid
 on

 co
mm

iss
ion

7N
o

Sw
an

se
a

3
3

3
3

On
ly a

 vi
sit

or 
so

 do
n't

 ha
ve

 a 
str

on
g o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e s
ub

jec
t

8N
o

Hu
cc

lec
ote

 
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

4
5

Re
ge

nt 
Str

ee
t g

ets
 m

es
sy

 
so

me
tim

es
 - n

ee
ds

 cl
ea

nin
g 

mo
re 

oft
en

9y
es

2
2

2
2L

ive
 in

 To
wn

 C
en

tre
. 

 Its
 go

od
 in

 m
orn

ing
, b

ut 
ge

ts 
qu

ite
 ba

d -
 ne

ed
s c

lea
nin

g m
ore

 
oft

en
10

ye
s

3
2

2
24

 R
ow

an
fie

ld 
are

a
Bu

sin
es

s i
n B

ath
 R

oa
d a

nd
 th

at 
ne

ve
r g

ets
 cl

ea
ne

d

11
ye

s
3

2
2

3
2

Ne
ed

s P
ow

er 
wa

sh
ing

 al
l s

tre
ets

 
mo

re 
reg

ula
rly

Te
nn

ys
on

 R
oa

d a
rea

 - v
om

it i
n B

us
 Sh

elt
er 

ne
ve

r g
ets

 cl
ea

ne
d u

p 
als

o D
og

 m
es

s

12
No

W
oo

dm
an

co
te

3
3

4
3I li

ve
 in

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 ar
ea

 & 
the

y d
o a

n e
xc

ell
en

t jo
b

13
No

Lin
co

lns
hir

e
4

4
3

3
Nic

e a
nd

 C
lea

n 

14
ye

s
2

2
2

3O
wn

 ar
ea

 ne
ed

s c
lea

nin
g -

 St
 M

ark
s

Mo
re 

cle
an

ing
 ne

ed
ed

 H
igh

 
Str

ee
t b

ad
 on

 Su
nd

ay
s

St 
Ma

rks
 ne

ed
s c

lea
nin

g
15

No
Ma

nc
he

ste
r

5
4

4
4

16
ye

s
5

4
3

34
 - H

ath
erl

ey
Sh

oo
t - 

the
 Pa

ris
h C

ou
nc

il I
 ha

te 
the

m

17
No

Fo
res

t o
f D

ea
n

3
2

3
5

Mo
re 

pre
se

nc
e i

n t
he

 ev
en

ing
s

Ea
rly

 m
orn

ing
 cl

ea
n i

s r
ea

lly 
go

od

18
ye

s
4

4
4

4
4

5Mo
re 

Cig
are

tte
 co

nta
ine

rs 
on

 
Po

sts
 ne

ed
ed

 w
ork

s i
n o

the
r 

tow
n i

.e.
 Ex

ete
r

19
ye

s
3

3
3

34
 - L

an
sd

ow
n A

rea
20

ye
s

3
3

3
3

3
To

wn
's 

qu
ite

 re
as

on
ab

le
lot

s o
f w

ee
ds

 in
 pa

ve
me

nts
 ou

tsi
de

 or
 pr

op
ert

y F
let

ch
ers

 D
riv

e
21

No
US

A
5

5
5

5
Nic

e c
lea

n T
ow

n
22

No
Co

ve
ntr

y
4

4
4

Lit
ter

 bi
ns

 - w
ha

t w
e'v

e s
ee

n t
he

re 
are

 pl
en

ty

23
ye

s
3

2
2

11 -
 H

e s
we

ep
s h

is 
ow

n a
rea

 ne
ve

r s
ee

 
an

yo
ne

 cl
ea

nin
g a

rea
 dr

ain
s a

t C
hu

rch
 

Ro
ad

 fu
ll o

f ru
bb

ish

24
No

Ov
erb

ury
4

4
2

3

So
rt o

ut 
the

 H
igh

 St
ree

t it
 is

 no
t 

arc
hit

ec
tur

all
y in

 ke
ep

ing
 w

ith
 

the
 re

st 
of 

the
 To

wn
25

ye
s

4
4

4
31

 - L
ec

kh
am

pto
n a

rea
Ch

ew
ing

 gu
n -

 it's
 a 

big
 pr

ob
lem

26
No

Du
rse

ley
4

4
3

3

Page 53



27
`

ye
s

4
4

4
4(

Bis
ho

ps
 C

lee
ve

)

Th
ere

's 
alw

ay
s t

rol
ley

s 
be

ing
 th

row
n i

n t
he

 
str

ea
m 

by
 Te

sc
o's

. 
Te

sc
o's

 re
fus

e t
o p

ull
 

the
m 

ou
t d

ue
 to

 H
ea

lth
 & 

Sa
fet

y (
no

t s
ure

 if 
thi

s i
s 

in 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

or 
Te

wk
es

bu
ry 

B. 
Co

un
cils

 
are

a

28
ye

s
4

4
3

2 -
 Lo

nd
on

 R
oa

d l
ea

fs 
& d

irt 
on

 
pa

thw
ay

s n
ot 

cle
an

ed
3

Bu
s s

he
lte

r b
ins

 ne
ed

ed
 al

so
 no

t e
no

ug
h d

og
 bi

ns
 an

d t
he

y n
ee

d 
mo

re 
fre

qu
en

tly 
em

pti
ed

29
`

No
Str

ou
d

4
4

4
4

Re
mo

ve
 gu

m 
fro

m 
pa

ve
me

nts
En

joy
 sh

op
pin

g h
ere

 in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

30
ye

s
3

3
4

42
 ve

ry 
po

or 
in 

are
as

3L
itte

r p
atr

ols
 at

 w
ee

ke
nd

s

 C
ou

nc
il E

sta
tes

 (s
uc

h a
s H

es
ter

s W
ay

) g
et 

litt
er 

pic
ke

d u
p d

ail
y. 

Th
e a

rea
 w

he
re 

I li
ve

 is
 lu

ck
y t

o g
et 

on
ce

 a 
we

ek
. T

he
 su

bw
ay

 at
 

Ar
le 

Co
urt

 is
 fre

qu
en

tly 
litt

ere
d w

ith
 Fa

st 
Fo

od
 ca

rto
ns

31
No

Bo
urt

on
 on

 
W

ate
r

2
2

3
3

To
wn

 ge
ts 

wo
rse

 th
ey

 tim
e I

 vi
sit

32
ye

s
3 1

/2
4

5
4

5
1 1

/2
Cu

t d
ow

n t
ow

n t
raf

fic
 an

d p
ark

ing
 si

de
 st

ree
ts

33
ye

s
2

3
34 B

in 
me

n d
o e

xc
ell

en
t jo

b -
 w

ee
ds

 in
 

gu
tte

rs
3  

  
34

No
Br

om
sg

rov
e

4
4

4
4

Vis
it C

he
lte

nh
am

 on
ce

 a 
mo

nth
 a 

nic
e p

lac
e t

o s
ho

p
35

ye
s

3
3

3
3

36
ye

s
4

4
3

3
45

 ne
ve

r s
ee

 an
y

No
ne

 - a
lre

ad
y a

 ni
ce

 To
wn

37
No

Ch
urc

hd
ow

n
5

5
5

5
5N

on
e -

 al
rea

dy
 a 

nic
e T

ow
n

Ve
ry 

go
od

 pl
ac

e

38
ye

s
3

2
2

4 1 
- P

ate
s A

ve
nu

e d
on

't s
ee

 st
ree

t 
cle

an
ers

Pr
ob

lem
 w

ith
 ne

igh
bo

urs
 

lea
vin

g o
ld 

so
fa'

s i
n 

ga
rde

n l
ow

ers
 th

e a
rea

Do
n't

 lik
e C

BH
 al

low
ing

 pe
op

le 
to 

rib
 up

 la
wn

s a
nd

 pu
ttin

g g
rav

el 
do

wn
. K

ids
 us

ing
 th

e g
rav

el 
as

 w
ea

po
ns

39
ye

s
4

4
3

4
3

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 Sp
rin

gb
an

k w
ith

 de
ali

ng
 w

ith
 fly

 tip
pin

g a
nd

 
str

ee
t c

lea
nin

g

40
ye

s
4

4
4

42 -
 Be

tte
r in

 ce
ntr

e t
ha

n W
ym

an
s 

bro
ok

Mo
re 

bin
s i

n s
ub

urb
s a

nd
 m

ore
 do

gg
ie 

ba
gs

41
ye

s
4

4
41

 - o
wn

 ar
ea

 po
or

2 -
 no

t v
ery

 go
od

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 ge

ne
ral

ly v
ery

 
go

od
Ga

rde
ne

rs 
La

ne
/Sw

ind
on

 R
oa

d a
rea

 ve
ry 

ba
d l

ots
 of

 lit
ter

 al
so

 of
f 

W
ind

rid
ge

 R
oa

d q
uit

e b
ad

42
ye

s
2.2

2.5
4

3
3

3M
ore

 cl
ea

ne
rs 

in 
To

wn
 C

en
tre

Gu
tte

rs,
 le

afs
 re

mo
ve

d m
ore

 fre
qu

en
tly 

we
ed

s n
ee

d d
oin

g m
ore

 
oft

en
 m

ore
 cl

ea
ne

rs 
in 

To
wn

 C
en

tre

43
ye

s
2

2
2

2
Sto

p c
yc

list
s i

n p
ed

es
tria

n a
rea

s, 
mo

re 
reg

ula
r s

we
ep

ing
 in

 th
e 

lec
kh

am
pto

n c
lea

n u
p a

fte
r c

utt
ing

 gr
as

s a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

ing
.

44
ye

s
5

5
3

5
5

5Mo
re 

be
nc

he
s a

nd
 bi

ns
 at

 bu
s 

sto
ps

45
No

W
inc

hc
om

be
2

2
4

2
3

Pu
bli

c d
on

't u
se

 th
e b

ins
46

ye
s

4
1

3
13

 - L
an

ds
do

wn
 ar

ea
 (F

lat
)

3
47

No
Te

wk
es

bu
ry

3
4

4
5

48
ye

s
4

4
4

44
 - B

oth
 go

od
Lo

we
r H

igh
 St

ree
t c

ou
ld 

be
 

be
tte

r
Ge

ne
ral

ly s
ati

sfi
ed

49
No

Te
wk

es
bu

ry
4

4
4

4

Lo
we

r H
igh

 St
ree

t b
it g

rub
by

 
co

uld
 be

 br
ou

gh
t u

p t
o l

ev
el 

of 
res

t o
f th

e T
ow

n C
en

tre
 w

hic
h i

s 
ve

ry 
go

od
50

ye
s

4
4

3
4 -

 St
 M

ark
s

51
No

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
3

3
4

4
Pr

ett
y s

ati
sfi

ed

52
ye

s
3

3
3

23
 - d

rai
ns

 ne
ed

 do
ing

 m
ore

 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 ne

ed
s 

sw
ee

pin
g/c

lea
nin

g m
ore

 to
wa

rds
 

we
ek

en
ds

Page 54



53
ye

s
4

4
4

43
 - U

pp
er 

Pa
rk 

Str
ee

t
To

 en
for

ce
 pe

op
le 

to 
pic

k u
p 

let
ter

Go
od

 to
 se

e t
he

 je
t w

as
he

rs 
be

ing
 us

ed

54
ye

s
4

4
4

4
5

4
Th

e p
rob

lem
s a

re 
pe

op
le 

us
ing

 pu
bs

 & 
clu

bs
 th

ey
 le

av
e l

oa
ds

 of
 

me
ss

 ie
 vo

mi
t  a

nd
 us

ing
 sh

op
 do

orw
ay

s a
s t

oil
et

55
ye

s
4

4
4

4 
5 -

 Ti
vo

li
4

Th
e e

ve
nin

gs
 th

e t
ow

n i
s a

 m
es

s

56
ye

s
3

3
5

5
2.5

Mo
re 

str
ee

t c
lea

ne
rs

Mo
re 

rec
yc

lin
g o

f p
las

tic
s, 

we
ek

ly c
oll

ec
tio

ns
, s

po
rad

ic 
cle

an
ing

 of
 

Als
ton

e l
an

e &
 W

ha
rfd

ale
 Sq

ua
re

57
ye

s
1.5

1.5
2

2No
 cl

ea
nin

g i
n a

rea
 - 

Mo
ntp

ell
ier

/La
ns

do
wn

4Mo
re 

bin
s P

rom
en

ad
e -

 
Ge

ne
ral

ly m
ore

 cl
ea

nin
g -

 st
op

 
pe

op
le 

fee
din

g b
ird

s
Mo

re 
cle

an
ing

 in
 ow

n a
rea

 M
on

tpe
llie

r/la
ns

do
wn

58
No

Te
wk

es
bu

ry
5

5
5

4
59

No
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

5
4

Ne
ed

 Pu
bli

c t
oil

ets
 op

en
Be

tte
r th

an
 G

lou
ce

ste
r

60
ye

s
4

4
5

4
3

Cig
are

tte
 Bi

ns
 on

 la
mp

po
sts

Dr
ain

s n
ee

d d
oin

g m
ore

 ar
ou

nd
 H

ew
let

t R
oa

d

61
No

Br
ist

ol
4

4
2.5

2
Mo

re 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

off
ice

rs 
ne

ed
ed

 & 
mo

re 
rec

yc
lin

g b
ins

62
ye

s

4 (
Pr

om
 & 

Hig
h S

t 
M&

S 2
 

Lo
we

r 
|Hi

gh
 

Str
ee

t
0

3
41 -

 G
ros

ve
no

r P
lac

e S
ou

th 
dra

ins
 do

n't
 

ge
t c

lea
ne

d &
 hu

ma
n w

as
te 

in 
all

ey
wa

ys

Yo
ur 

on
ly i

nte
res

ted
 in

 th
e t

ou
ris

t 
are

as
 of

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 no

t w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 to
 liv

e i
n t

he
 To

wn
 

Ce
ntr

e
63

ye
s

1
1

3
1

64
ye

s
3

3
2

2D
rai

ns
 ne

ed
 do

ing
 in

 le
ck

ha
mp

ton
3Mo

re 
str

ee
t c

lea
nin

g, 
mo

re 
bin

s, 
bin

s n
ee

d e
mp

tyin
g m

ore
 of

ten
Dr

ain
s n

ee
d d

oin
g i

n L
ec

kh
am

pto
n -

 U
pp

er 
No

rw
oo

d S
tre

et

65
ye

s
1

1
3

1

Mo
re 

cle
an

ing
, e

mp
ty 

bin
s m

ore
 

oft
en

. D
o n

ot 
all

ow
 pe

op
le 

to 
fee

 
bir

ds

66
No

Bis
ho

ps
 

Cle
ev

e
5

5
4

5B
ett

er 
tha

n o
wn

 ar
ea

Hig
h S

tre
et 

co
uld

 be
 cl

ea
ne

d a
 

bit
 m

ore
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e s

am
e l

ev
el 

as
 Pr

om
.

Be
tte

r th
an

 Bi
sh

op
s C

lee
ve

67
ye

s
4

4
4

4b
ett

er 
in 

ce
ntr

e
tow

n C
en

tre
 ve

ry 
go

od
Re

fus
e c

oll
ec

tio
n i

n S
pri

ng
ba

nk
 an

 is
su

e

68
ye

s
2

2
3

34
 - P

ittv
ille

Fo
od

 w
as

te 
fro

m 
Th

e C
lee

ve
lan

ds
 - t

he
 la

rge
 bi

n i
sn

't b
ein

g 
em

pti
ed

 w
e h

av
e t

o r
ing

 ev
ert

him
e t

o g
et 

the
m 

ba
ck

 to
 em

pty

69
ye

s
1

1
3

33
 - p

ret
ty 

go
od

 in
 ow

n a
rea

Str
ee

ts 
in 

ce
ntr

e n
ee

d w
as

hin
g 

mo
re 

oft
en

, p
art

icu
lar

ly a
fte

r 
we

ek
en

ds

70
ye

s
4

4
4

45
 - P

ittv
ille

 
5Pa

ve
me

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 po

we
r 

wa
sh

ed
 ev

ery
 m

orn
ing

 sp
ec

ial
ly 

are
as

 ot
he

r th
an

 th
e P

rom
 & 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

by
 M

 & 
S L

ow
er 

Hig
h 

Str
ee

t a
 di

sg
rac

e
71

No
Ru

gb
y

4
4

4
Nic

e t
ow

n t
o v

isit

72
ye

s
2

1
3

3
3

3No
ne

 - e
du

ca
tio

n &
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

sh
ou

ld 
su

ffic
e

73
No

Bis
ley

, S
tro

ud
4

4
3

4
5Mo

re 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

on
 lit

ter
 m

ore
 

po
we

r w
as

hin
g i

n o
ute

r a
rea

s o
f 

tow
n i

e l
ow

er 
en

d

74
No

Cir
en

ce
ste

r
4

4
4

4
4 -

 ne
ve

r s
ee

n a
ny

 on
 

wa
y in

to 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m

As
 go

od
 as

 C
ire

nc
es

ter

75
ye

s
4

4
3

3C
en

tre
 be

tte
r th

an
 Ti

vo
li

5Mo
re 

cle
an

ing
 on

 w
ee

ke
nd

s. 
Mo

re 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

on
 lit

ter
ing

76
ye

s
1

1
2

2T
ow

n b
ett

er
2.5

mo
re 

cle
an

ing
 m

ore
 cl

ea
ne

rs 
mo

re 
po

we
r w

as
hin

g m
ore

 
en

for
ce

me
nt

Mo
re 

cle
an

ing
 in

 St
 Pa

ul's
 ne

ed
ed

 ba
dly

 ne
ed

s b
ett

er 
ma

ch
ine

s
77

ye
s

3
3

3
2O

wn
 ar

ea
 po

or 
- C

/K
3

Ry
ew

ort
h R

oa
d -

 dr
ain

s n
ee

d c
lea

nin
g a

 lo
t m

ore
 of

ten

Page 55



78
No

Ex
ete

r
1

2
2

No
t e

no
ug

h b
its

Mu
ck

y g
um

 on
 pa

ve
me

nts
 w

ou
ldn

't c
om

e a
ga

in

79
ye

s
4

4
3

34
 ow

n a
rea

 fin
e

5Mo
re 

bin
s a

nd
 em

pty
 m

ore
 on

 
we

ek
en

ds

80
No

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
4

4
2

4
4B

ins
 em

pti
ed

 m
ore

 at
 w

ee
ke

nd
s

Cle
an

er 
tha

n G
lou

ce
ste

r n
ot 

as
 go

od
 as

 Yo
rk 

81
ye

s
4

4
4

45
 - P

res
tbu

ry 
4

82
ye

s
3

2
3

20
 - R

ed
din

gs
Le

ss
 Bu

se
s

83
ye

s
3

3
2

42
 - M

ars
h L

an
e

3Ce
ntr

e's
 go

od
 it’

s t
he

 si
de

 
str

ee
ts 

ne
ed

 cl
ea

nin
g

Es
tat

es
 ne

ed
 cl

ea
nin

g. 
Ca

r p
ark

ing
 a 

pro
ble

m 
for

 cl
ea

nin
g

84
No

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
3

3
4

5
85

ye
s

3.5
3.5

5
4

3.5

86
ye

s
4

4
3

3

Mo
ntp

ell
ier

 G
ard

en
s &

 Im
pe

ria
l 

Ga
rde

ns
 lo

ts 
of 

rub
bis

h l
eft

 at
 

we
ek

en
ds

87
ye

s
4

3
4

4
4

4

88
No

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
5

5
4

4Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
str

ee
ts 

are
 m

uc
h c

lea
ne

r 
tha

n G
lou

ce
ste

r
W

e c
om

e t
o C

he
lte

nh
am

 sh
op

pin
g b

ec
au

se
 its

 cl
ea

n n
ot 

like
 

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r

89
ye

s
4

4
4

1
1

Ne
ed

s m
ore

 cl
ea

nin
g i

n T
he

 re
dd

ing
s e

sp
. d

og
gy

 po
o a

nd
 lit

ter
 in

 
he

dg
es

90
ye

s
3

3
4

5
4

4No
t th

e p
lac

e i
t w

as
 32

 ye
ars

 
ag

o N
ort

h S
tre

et 
6 P

ort
lan

d 
Str

ee
t a

n e
ye

 so
re

A l
ot 

of 
sh

op
 ru

bb
ish

, L
ow

er 
Hig

h S
t n

ee
d c

lea
nin

g u
p

91
ye

s
4

4
2

3
1

St 
ma

rks
 w

ee
ds

 re
all

y b
ad

. N
ot 

en
ou

gh
 st

ree
t c

lea
ne

rs 
in 

ou
r 

are
a. 

Do
n't

 se
nd

 m
on

ey
 on

 flo
we

rs 
- s

pe
nd

 it 
on

 cl
ea

nin
g. 

No
t 

ha
pp

y a
bo

ut 
sp

en
din

g l
oa

ds
 of

 m
on

ey
 on

 Im
pe

ria
l G

ard
en

s w
he

n 
the

 co
un

cil 
sa

y t
he

re'
s n

o m
on

ey
 fo

r c
lea

nin
g

92
ye

s
5

5
5

53 -
 Lo

nd
on

 R
oa

d a
rea

 - p
ark

ed
 ca

rs 
are

 a 
pro

ble
m 

wit
h c

lea
nin

g a
rea

`
Ne

ed
 bu

s s
he

lte
r e

nd
 of

 C
ha

s A
ve

nu
e

93
No

Na
ilse

a
3

3
3

3

94
ye

s
5

5
4

5 -
 R

ac
e C

ou
rse

 ar
ea

5E
du

ca
te 

pe
op

le 
to 

pic
k u

p l
itte

r

95
ye

s
3

0
2

3
1

1
Ha

the
rle

y f
ly t

ipp
ing

 in
 th

e a
lle

yw
ay

s a
lso

 no
t e

no
ug

h w
ee

d 
cle

ari
ng

96
No

Fo
res

t o
f D

ea
n

5
4

4
4

Lik
e v

isit
ing

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 as

 its
 ni

ce
r th

an
 G

lou
ce

ste
r

97
ye

s
4

4
4

3
98

ye
s

4
4

3
3

4
3M

ore
 bi

ns
 fo

r c
iga

ret
te 

en
ds

99
ye

s
4

3.5
3

41
 - H

ath
erl

ey
3Mo

re 
bin

s f
or 

rec
yc

lin
g i

ns
tea

d 
of 

bin
s f

or 
litt

er
10

0y
es

3
3

5
43

 - P
res

tbu
ry

10
1y

es
3

3
4

3 3 
- B

en
ha

ll a
rea

 - p
rob

lem
 w

ith
 G

CH
Q 

pe
op

le 
pa

rki
ng

 on
 ou

r s
tre

et.
 Th

e d
rai

n 
cle

an
er 

co
uld

n't
 ge

t in
. P

lea
se

 so
rt t

his
 

ou
t.

10
2y

es
3

3
2

32
 - F

idd
ler

s G
ree

n
firs

t th
ing

 in
 th

e m
orn

ing
 af

ter
 pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 be
en

 ou
t, t

he
 To

wn
 

Ce
ntr

e i
s a

 bi
t g

rim
10

3N
o

Str
ou

d
5

5
3

3
10

4N
o

Te
wk

es
bu

ry
4

4
3

3

10
5y

es
4

4
4

23
 - P

res
tbu

ry
3Mo

re 
rec

yc
lin

g b
ins

 an
d m

ore
 

inf
o w

ith
 th

em

10
6y

es
4

4
3

34
 - L

ec
kh

am
pto

n
2 -

 fly
 tip

pin
g i

n 
W

inc
hc

om
be

 St
ree

t
10

7N
o

So
me

rse
t

5
5

3
3

Mu
ch

 cl
ea

ne
r th

an
 Ta

un
ton

10
8y

es
4

5
4

44
 - S

t M
ark

s
4

10
9N

o
Sw

ind
on

5
5

3
3

11
0y

es
3

3
3

33
 - W

es
tal

 G
ree

n
3

Page 56



11
1y

es
3

4
3

33 -
 Fe

rnl
eig

h C
res

ce
nt 

 w
ee

ds
 in

 
gu

tte
rs

3

11
2y

es
2

2
4

43
 - G

rea
tfie

ld 
La

ne
 

3

Re
cy

clin
g l

oa
de

rs 
dro

p l
itte

r a
nd

 gl
as

s w
he

n c
oll

ec
tin

g a
nd

 th
ey

 
do

n't
 pi

ck
 it 

up
. T

he
y le

av
e t

he
 bi

ns
 an

d b
ox

's 
on

 th
e p

ath
 th

ey
 

do
n't

 re
tur

n t
he

m 
to 

wh
ere

 th
ey

 go
t th

em
.

11
3N

o
Te

wk
es

bu
ry

4
4

4
4T

ew
ke

sb
ury

 pr
ov

ide
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
se

rvi
ce

Th
e p

rob
lem

 is
 pe

op
le 

ma
kin

g t
he

 to
wn

 un
tid

y b
y d

rop
pin

g l
itte

r. 
Th

ere
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

off
ice

rs 
on

 th
e s

tre
ets

11
4y

es
3

3
2

2 2 
- W

ym
an

s b
roo

k -
 ha

ve
n't

 se
en

 a 
sw

ee
pe

r fo
r o

ve
r 1

8 m
on

ths

2 -
 G

ard
en

ers
 La

ne
 

se
em

s t
o b

e a
 sp

ot 
for

 fly
 

tip
pin

g

Su
bw

ay
 in

 W
ym

an
s B

roo
k d

oe
sn

't g
et 

cle
an

ed
 gr

aff
iti 

on
 w

all
s. 

No
 

pro
ble

m 
wit

h r
efu

se
 w

ou
ld 

like
 to

 se
e m

ore
 do

gg
ie 

bin
s l

itte
r 

ou
tsi

de
 th

e s
ho

ps
 an

d p
ub

 a 
pro

ble
m 

ne
ve

r g
ets

 sw
ee

p.

11
5y

es
4

3
4

41 -
 C

lar
ing

ton
 M

ew
s P

ittv
ille

 - 
Re

sid
en

ts 
sw

ee
ps

 th
e a

rea
 as

 it 
ne

ve
r 

ge
ts 

cle
an

ed
 by

 co
un

cil4
W

ell
es

ley
 R

oa
d n

o l
itte

r c
oll

ec
tio

ns
 do

ne
 by

 C
BC

 re
sid

en
ts 

do
 it.

 
CB

C 
are

 ve
ry 

go
od

 in
 re

sp
on

din
g t

o r
eq

ue
sts

.
11

6y
es

4
4

5
54

 Bi
bu

ry 
Ro

ad
4

11
7N

o
Ch

urc
hd

ow
n

5
5

2
2

Ple
as

e p
ut 

ou
t m

ore
 bi

ns
 w

he
n t

he
re 

are
 ev

en
ts 

in 
the

 to
wn

/pa
rks

 
etc

.
11

8y
es

4
4

3
3

3
11

9y
es

3
3

2
25

 - P
res

tbu
ry 

12
0y

es
3

4
4

22
 - S

t S
tep

he
ns

 R
oa

d 
3

live
 in

 St
 St

ep
he

ns
 R

oa
d o

pp
. S

t S
tep

he
ns

 C
los

e h
av

en
't s

ee
n a

 
roa

d s
we

ep
er 

in 
tw

o y
ea

rs,
 dr

ain
s f

ull
 w

ate
r c

an
no

t d
rai

n a
wa

y. 
Ph

on
ed

 m
an

y t
im

es
 no

thi
ng

 ev
er 

ye
ts 

do
ne

.
12

1N
o

Pe
rsh

ore
4

4
4

A l
ov

ely
 to

wn
12

2N
o

So
uth

 W
ale

s
4

4
3

3
12

3y
es

4
4

3
3

4
Mo

re 
bin

s n
ee

de
d L

ow
er 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

& S
win

do
n R

oa
d

12
4y

es
4

4
3

42
 - t

op
 en

d o
f P

.E.
W

.
12

5N
o

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
5

5
5

5
12

6y
es

1
1

2
42

 - M
on

tpe
llie

r D
riv

e
2

12
7y

es
3

2
4

4
5

2Hig
h S

tre
et 

fro
m 

top
 to

 bo
tto

m 
a 

dis
gra

ce
Bin

s -
 th

ere
 ar

e p
len

ty 
of 

bin
s i

t’s
 th

e p
eo

ple
 w

ho
 do

n't
 us

e t
he

m 
 

let
 se

e e
nfo

rce
me

nt.
 Bi

ns
 ne

ed
 em

pty
 m

ore
 in

 Pa
rks

. 

12
8N

o
Mo

ret
on

 in
 

Ma
rsh

4
4

5
4

12
9N

o
Le

on
ard

 
Sta

nle
y

4
4

4
4

W
as

h t
he

 pa
ve

me
nts

 m
ore

 af
ter

 
Fri

d/S
at 

13
0y

es
3

3
4

42 -
 To

wn
se

nd
 St

ree
t d

isg
rac

e 
res

ide
nts

 ha
ve

 to
 pi

ck
 up

 lit
ter

 no
 ro

ad
 

sw
ee

pin
g d

on
e

2 -
 H

igh
 St

 /H
on

ey
bo

rne
 

lin
e a

lwa
ys

 fly
 tip

pin
g

Mo
re 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
off

ice
rs 

sp
ec

ial
ly i

n L
ow

er 
Hig

h S
tre

et
Mo

re 
do

g b
ins

 ne
ed

ed
 N

o c
yc

list
 in

 To
wn

 C
en

tre

13
1y

es
3 2

 - v
ery

 ve
ry 

po
or

2 -
 no

t e
no

ug
h

2 -
 em

pty
 m

ore0 A
bo

mi
na

ble
 - d

rea
dfu

l!
1Be

tte
r tr

aff
ic 

co
ntr

ol 
& p

ark
ing

 
mo

re 
cle

an
 to

ile
ts 

les
s c

he
win

g 
gu

m 
me

ss

Bo
 at

ten
tio

n p
aid

 by
 co

un
cil 

to 
res

ide
nts

 liv
ing

 in
 th

e a
rea

 ou
tsi

de
 

of 
He

ste
rs 

W
ay

 St
 Pa

ul's
 or

 W
ha

dd
on

 it 
se

em
s w

e c
ou

nt 
for

 
no

thi
ng

 ex
ce

pt 
for

 pa
yin

g c
ou

nc
il t

ax
13

2N
o

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r
4

4
4

4

13
3y

es
3

3
4

3
2

Mo
re 

do
g b

ins
 in

 To
wn

 C
en

tre
Mo

re 
we

ed
ing

 pl
ea

se
 to

p H
ale

s R
oa

d &
 O

ak
 m

an
or 

Dr
ive

 W
ee

d 
sp

ray
ing

 w
ou

ld 
be

 go
od

 to
o.

13
4y

es
3

3
5

3
2

1Mo
re 

cle
an

ing
 af

ter
 Fr

ida
y &

 
Sa

tur
da

y n
igh

ts
13

5N
o

3
3

3
3

13
6N

o
Br

ed
on

4
4

4
4

13
7y

es
4

4
2

3
1

Lo
we

r H
igh

 St
ree

t n
ee

ds
 m

ore
 

cle
an

ing

13
8y

es
3

3
2

2
Mo

re 
litt

er 
bin

s a
nd

 m
ore

 
sw

ee
pin

g 

13
9y

es
3

3
3

3
To

wn
 lo

ok
s u

nti
dy

 be
ca

us
e o

f a
ll 

the
 cl

os
ed

 sh
op

s

14
0y

es
2

2
3

3
To

wn
 C

en
tre

 us
ed

 to
 be

 lo
ve

ly -
 

no
w 

its
 re

all
y d

ow
n &

 G
rot

ty

Page 57



14
1N

o
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

3
3

Go
lde

n V
all

ey
 is

 a 
me

ss
 - i

t b
ein

g t
he

 ga
tew

ay
 to

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 - i

t 
loo

ks
 ba

d f
or 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m

14
2y

es
3

3
3

32
 - P

res
tbu

ry
Gu

llie
s o

n P
res

tbu
ry 

Ro
ad

 pa
st 

Fo
x &

 H
ou

nd
s n

ee
d c

lea
nin

g v
ery

 
blo

ck
ed

 an
d a

lwa
ys

 ha
s a

 bi
g p

ud
dle

 w
he

n's
 its

 be
en

 ra
ini

ng
14

3N
o

W
orc

es
ter

3
3

5
5

14
4y

es
5

5
5

55
 - L

an
sd

ow
n

5
Yo

u d
o a

 go
od

 Jo
b!

14
5y

es
4

4
1

22
 - W

ym
an

s B
rro

k

Mo
re 

bin
s o

uts
ide

 fa
st 

foo
d p

lac
es

 pl
ea

se
. W

ym
an

s B
roo

k -
 

Sw
ind

on
 R

oa
d B

rid
ge

 ar
ea

 re
all

y m
es

sy
/di

rty
. A

nim
al 

Sh
elt

er 
fly

 
tip

pin
g

14
6y

es
Ho

lla
nd

4
4

Nic
e p

lac
e

14
7y

es
4

4
4

42
 - G

rev
il R

oa
d

Ne
ve

r s
ee

 an
y li

tte
r p

ick
ers

 or
 sw

ee
pin

g. 
Ar

le 
Sto

res
 lit

ter
 ve

ry 
ba

d. 
Ne

ed
 to

 se
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

off
ice

rs 
in 

res
ide

nti
al 

are
as

 of
 Ar

le

14
8y

es
3

3
3

2P
riv

ate
 R

oa
d C

/K
3Ca

r P
ark

ing
 to

 ex
pe

ns
ive

 dr
ivin

g 
pe

op
le 

to 
sh

op
 ou

tsi
de

 to
wn

 
Bu

sin
es

s a
dd

res
s H

ew
let

t R
oa

d -
 qu

ite
 a 

bit
 of

 lit
ter

 an
d c

ar 
pa

rki
ng

 a 
pro

ble
m

14
9N

o
Cir

en
ce

ste
r

4
4

4
4

Alw
ay

s l
oo

ks
 go

od

15
0y

es
4

4
4

44
 - S

t L
uk

e's
4

Ca
r P

ark
ing

 in
 St

 Lu
ke

's 
jus

t c
ha

ng
ed

 to
 pa

y &
 D

isp
lay

 gr
ea

t 
im

pro
ve

me
nt

15
1N

o
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

3
3

3
4

15
2N

o
So

me
rse

t
5

5
4

4

15
3y

es
4

4
3

34
 - W

ym
an

s B
roo

k
3B

ett
er 

rec
yc

lin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 in

 To
wn

15
4y

es
4

4
44

 - N
ev

er 
se

e t
he

m 
ov

erf
low

ing
3 -

 Ar
le 

Ro
ad

3
15

5y
es

4
4

4
44

 - S
he

rbo
rne

 St
ree

t
5

Pr
ob

lem
 la

st 
tw

o w
ee

ks
 w

ith
 re

fus
e c

oll
ec

tio
n f

rom
 fla

ts

15
6N

o
He

lst
on

 
Co

rnw
all

5
5

4
4

Fir
st 

vis
it v

ery
 ni

ce
 pl

ac
e

15
7N

o
W

inc
ho

mb
e 

4
4

2
4

15
8y

es
4

4
3

3
4

Lit
ter

 bi
ns

 in
 Pr

es
tbu

ry 
(bo

tto
m 

of 
ne

w 
ba

rn 
lan

e) 
oft

en
 

ov
erf

low
ing

. M
ore

 cl
ea

nin
g o

f 
gu

tte
rs 

ple
as

e.

15
9y

es
1

1
2

13
 - P

res
tbu

ry 
it b

ett
er

1Mo
re 

reg
ula

r c
lea

nin
g o

f g
utt

ers
, 

mo
re 

bin
s

Mo
re 

ord
er,

 m
ore

 en
for

ce
me

nt.
 To

wn
 ha

s g
ot 

mu
ch

 w
ors

e, 
rap

idl
y 

de
clin

ing
.

16
0y

es
3

3
3

33
 - E

as
t E

nd
 R

oa
d C

/K
4

16
1y

es
4

4
3

34
 - C

old
 Po

ol 
La

ne
4

W
ou

ld 
like

 to
 se

e p
eo

ple
 st

op
pe

d t
o p

ick
 up

 th
eir

 lit
ter

 th
ey

 dr
op

 
Em

ba
rra

ss
 th

em
.

16
2y

es
4

4
4

42
 - E

xm
ou

th 
Str

ee
t

4

Ba
th 

Ro
ad

 ok
 bu

t s
ide

 ra
od

 of
f a

re 
ba

d n
ot 

cle
an

ed
 du

e p
rob

lem
 

wit
h c

ar 
pa

rki
ng

. A
 lo

t o
f li

tte
r b

y C
op

 al
so

 at
 th

e r
ea

r o
f th

e 
pro

pe
rty

. F
as

t F
oo

d p
ac

ka
gin

g a
 pr

ob
lem

. W
ee

ds
 in

 gu
tte

rs 
Fra

nc
is 

Str
ee

t a
rea

.

16
3y

es
2

2
3

32
 - W

ard
en

 H
ill n

ot 
as

 go
od

 as
 ce

ntr
e

Mo
re 

po
we

r w
as

hin
g o

f s
tre

ets
, 

Lo
we

r H
igh

 St
ree

t v
ery

 di
rty

 
ne

ed
s c

lea
nin

g m
ore

 of
ten

.
No

t a
s c

lea
n a

s G
erm

an
 to

wn
s a

nd
 ci

tie
s.

16
4y

es
4

4
3

44
 - P

ret
ty 

go
od

3M
ore

 bi
ns

 in
 Lo

we
r H

igh
 St

ree
t

Mo
re 

bin
s f

or 
are

as
 lik

e L
an

sd
ow

n a
nd

 P.
E. 

W
ay

16
5y

es
4

4
3

34
 - C

ha
rlto

n K
ing

s i
s b

ett
er

Mo
re 

bin
s i

n L
ow

er 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
an

d v
isib

le 
en

for
ce

me
nt

16
6N

o
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

5
5

St 
ma

rys
 C

hu
rch

 ba
d i

n t
he

 
mo

rni
ng

s w
ith

 ca
ns

 ci
ga

ret
te 

en
ds

. M
ore

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
at 

bu
sy

 
tim

es
 Lu

nc
hti

me
s &

 ev
en

ing
s.

Page 58



16
7y

es
3

3
3

34
 - L

ec
kh

am
pto

n
2 -

 fly
 tip

pin
g o

n C
old

 
Po

ol 
La

ne

Re
cy

clin
g C

en
tre

 ne
ed

 to
 be

 em
pti

ed
 m

ore
 at

 Ba
nk

 H
oli

da
ys

 an
d 

Sc
ho

ol 
ho

lid
ay

s a
s t

he
y g

et 
ful

l a
nd

 th
e r

ub
bis

h/r
ec

yc
lin

g g
ets

 le
ft 

at 
sid

e. 
Ol

d P
ats

 re
ce

ylin
g n

ee
d a

 bi
n f

or 
tin

s/m
eta

l.

16
8y

es
3

3
3

45 -
 Ex

ce
lle

nt,
 lo

ve
 ne

w 
rec

yc
lin

g 
sy

ste
m

W
ou

ld 
like

 m
ore

 co
mm

un
ity 

off
ice

rs 
to 

mo
nit

or 
litt

er 
un

rul
y 

be
ha

vio
ur 

in 
ev

en
ing

s a
nd

 
we

ek
en

ds
.

Th
e t

ow
n c

ne
tre

 is
 til

l p
ron

e t
o d

run
k &

 di
so

rde
rly

 be
ha

vio
ur 

at 
nig

hts
 & 

we
ek

en
ds

 w
hic

h l
ow

ers
 th

e t
ow

n i
ma

ge
 an

d m
ak

es
 

loc
als

 no
t w

an
tin

g t
o g

o o
ut.

 M
ay

be
 a 

str
on

ge
r p

oli
cin

g o
f p

ub
lic 

ho
us

es
 so

 th
ey

 do
n't

 se
rve

 dr
ink

s t
o d

run
ks

. M
ore

 bi
ns

 re
qu

ire
d i

n 
Lo

we
r H

igh
 St

ree
t.

16
9N

o
W

arw
ick

/Fa
r 

Ea
st

2
4

2.5
Th

e t
ow

n a
s i

mp
rov

ed
 si

nc
e l

as
t 

vis
it

W
hy

 do
 yo

u c
ha

rge
 fo

r d
om

es
tic

 fu
rni

tur
e t

o b
e c

oll
ec

ted
 as

 
pe

op
le 

wil
l o

nly
 fly

 tip
 it.

17
0y

es
3

3
3

34
 - B

en
ha

ll is
 cl

ea
n

4L
ow

er 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
cle

an
er

17
1y

es
1

1
1

11
 - v

ery
 po

or 
in 

all
 ar

ea
s

Ne
ed

s t
o c

lea
ne

d m
ore

 of
ten

17
2N

o
Pe

ak
 D

ist
ric

t
5

5
4

4
Mo

re 
pu

bli
c t

oil
ets

 w
ou

ld 
be

 
go

od

17
3y

es
3

3
4

42
 - W

es
tdo

wn
 G

ard
en

s 
4Su

nd
ay

 m
orn

ing
s n

ee
d a

 ea
rly

 
cle

an
 up

 as
 sh

op
 do

orw
ay

s a
re 

ful
l o

f v
om

it

Le
igh

ton
 R

d r
es

ide
nts

 us
ing

 lit
ter

 bi
ns

 fo
r th

ere
 do

me
sti

c r
ub

bis
h. 

W
es

tdo
wn

 G
dn

s h
av

en
't s

ee
n a

 st
ree

t c
lea

ne
r fo

r 2
 ye

ars
. S

tre
et 

pa
rki

ng
 a 

pro
ble

m 
pe

op
le 

res
ide

nts
 fro

m 
Ha

les
 R

oa
d p

ark
 in

 
W

es
tdo

wn
 ga

rde
ns

 st
op

pin
g t

he
 st

ree
t s

we
ep

er 
cle

an
ing

.
17

4N
o

Ha
mp

sh
ire

5
5

5
Be

au
tifu

l to
wn

A l
ov

ely
 pl

ac
e t

o v
isit

 yo
u a

re 
luc

ky
 to

 liv
e i

n s
uc

h a
 ni

ce
 to

wn
17

5N
o

Ch
urc

hd
ow

n
4

4
2

Te
aly

 ni
ce

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e. 
I li

ke
 it 

a l
ot.

17
6y

es
5

5
3

3
2

Dr
ain

s n
ee

din
g c

lea
nin

g o
n E

ldo
rad

o C
res

ce
nt 

- n
ot 

im
pre

ss
ed

 by
 

the
 lit

ter
 cl

ea
nin

g v
eh

icle
s -

 th
ey

 ju
st 

mo
ve

 th
e l

itte
r a

rou
nd

.. A
lso

 
lea

ve
s a

re 
a p

rob
lem

 in
 Au

tum
n/W

int
er 

on
 m

y s
tre

et 
the

y m
ak

e 
the

 pa
ve

me
nts

 sl
ipp

ery
 an

d a
 ha

za
rdo

us
 to

 th
e e

lde
rly

.
17

7y
es

4
4

4
5

4
Ev

es
ha

m 
Ro

ad
 bi

nm
en

 le
av

e r
ub

bis
h a

s t
he

y g
o a

lon
g

17
8N

o
Sto

ne
ho

us
e

5
4

5
5

17
9y

es
4

4
3

3
3

Mo
re 

str
ee

t c
ela

nin
g a

t L
ow

er 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
als

o t
he

 lit
ter

 bi
ns

 
ne

ed
 em

pty
ing

 m
ore

 of
ten

18
0y

es
3

3
2

5we
 liv

e a
 a 

pri
va

te 
roa

d a
nd

 ha
ve

 no
 

str
ee

t c
lea

nin
g

Mo
re 

litt
er 

bin
s

18
1y

es
4

4
3

4
5

18
2N

o
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

4
4

18
3y

es
4

4
2

3
4

Mo
re 

tre
es

 w
ou

ld 
be

 ni
ce

To
p o

f C
oll

eg
e R

oa
d i

s c
ov

ere
d w

ith
 ci

ga
ret

te 
en

ds
 m

ore
 bi

ns
 

wo
uld

 be
 go

od

18
4y

es
2

2
1

11 -
 Ki

ng
sm

ea
d C

los
e/K

ing
sm

ea
d R

oa
d 

str
ee

t c
lea

nin
g 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
is 

a d
isg

rac
e

Kin
gs

me
ad

 ar
ea

 re
sid

en
ts 

ha
ve

 a 
pro

ble
m 

wit
h B

ay
lis 

Ga
rag

e 
em

ply
ee

s a
nd

 cu
sto

me
rs 

pa
rki

ng
 in

 ro
ad

 an
d s

ide
 ro

ad
s.

18
5N

o
W

inc
hc

om
be

4
4

5
5

Ca
r P

ark
ing

 to
 ex

pe
ns

ive
 dr

ivin
g 

pe
op

le 
to 

sh
op

 ou
tsi

de
 to

wn
 

18
6y

es
4

4
2

2
3

em
pty

ing
 of

 bi
ns

 Su
nd

ay
s a

re 
ba

d
18

7y
es

5
5

3
3

4
Pit

tvi
lle

 pa
rk 

bin
s n

ee
d e

mp
tyin

g m
ore

 of
ten

18
8y

es
4

4
3

4
Mo

re 
bin

s o
ut 

on
 a 

Fri
da

y/S
atu

rda
y n

igh
t

Un
ion

 St
ree

t d
rai

ns
 ne

ed
 cl

ea
nin

g. 
Ro

ad
s r

ea
lly 

go
od

. W
e s

ho
uld

 
ge

t ta
ke

wa
ys

 & 
fas

t fo
od

 sh
op

s t
o p

ay
 fo

r e
xtr

a c
lea

nin
g o

uts
ide

 
the

ir s
ho

ps
18

9N
o

Sw
ind

on
5

5
4

5
19

0y
es

3
3

3
3

19
1N

o
Gl

ou
ce

ste
r

4
4

4
44

 - s
lig

htl
y b

ett
er 

tha
n G

lou
ce

ste
r

Ve
ry 

nic
e t

ow
n

19
2y

es
3

3
2

3
4

Ge
t th

e s
ho

ps
 to

 ke
ep

 th
eir

 
rub

bis
h o

ut 
of 

the
 w

ay
 - s

top
 

du
mp

ing
 ba

gs
 ou

tsi
de

 th
e s

ho
ps

Bin
s i

n P
ittv

ille
 Pa

rk 
ne

ed
s e

mp
tyin

g m
ore

 of
ten

19
3y

es
4

4
4

4
5

Ve
ry 

nic
e t

ow
n

19
4y

es
4

4
4

4
4

Ve
ry 

sa
tis

fie
d, 

lov
ely

 to
wn

.

Page 59



19
5N

o
US

A
4

4
4

4
A l

oc
ely

 to
wn

 to
 vi

sit
 an

d n
ice

 an
d c

lea
n

19
6N

o
Te

wk
es

bu
ry

4
4

4
4

Lo
we

r H
igh

 St
ree

t c
ou

ld 
be

 
cle

an
er

Pr
ett

y g
oo

d, 
bu

t n
ot 

as
 cl

ea
n a

s T
ew

ke
sb

ury

19
7y

es
3

3
2

23
 - T

ivo
li o

k a
pa

rt f
rom

 st
ud

en
ts

Mo
re 

reg
ua

lr c
lea

nin
g

Ne
e t

o e
du

ca
te 

pe
op

le 
no

t to
 dr

op
 lit

ter
 m

ore
 bi

ns
 ne

ed
ed

 ac
ros

s 
tow

n

19
8y

es
2

2
2

23
 - T

ivo
li R

oa
d

Mo
re 

reg
ula

r c
lea

nin
g i

n c
en

tre
 

& m
ore

 bi
ns

19
9y

es
3

3
4

42
 - W

ym
an

s b
roo

k -
 di

rty
3W

ho
le 

tow
n n

ee
ds

 cl
ea

nin
g 

mo
re

20
0y

es
2

2
2

3
2

Ce
ntr

e n
ee

ds
 cl

ea
nin

g m
ore

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 ar
ou

nd
 Lo

we
r H

igh
 St

ree
t

20
1y

es
1

1
2

21
 - G

lou
ce

ste
r P

lac
e

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 & 

su
bu

rbs
 is

 fif
thy

 
ne

ed
s c

lea
nin

g m
ore

 of
ten

Pr
ob

lem
s i

n G
lou

ce
ste

r P
lac

e c
lea

nin
g t

he
re 

is 
ve

ry 
ina

de
qu

ate

Page 60



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
Ite

m  
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\9\

2\3
\AI

00
00

23
29

\$q
qg

fgy
0d

.do
c 

 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
3 J

uly
 20

11
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

8 J
un

e 2
01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 Pa

pe
rs:

 1 
Ju

ly 
20
11
 

Se
co
nd
 an
nu
al 
rev
iew

 of
 th
e 

Gl
ou
ce
ste
rsh
ire
 Ai
rpo
rt –
 G
ree

n 
Po
licy
 20
10
-20

11
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
of 
the
 G
ree

n 
Po
licy
 

Re
po
rt 

Gi
ll M

orr
is,
 C
lim
ate
 C
ha
ng
e a
nd
 

Su
sta
ina
bil
ity 
Of
fic
er 

Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 

Co
mm

iss
ion
ing
 Pr
oje
ct 
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Co
mm

en
t o
n d
raf
t re
po
rt 

pri
or 
to 
Ca
bin
et 
(26
 Ju
ly)
 

Re
po
rt 

Ja
ne
 G
riff
ith
s, 
Dir
ec
tor
 of
 

Co
mm

iss
ion
ing
 (in
 th
e a
bs
en
ce
 of
 

Gr
ah
am
e L
ew
is,
 Ex
ec
uti
ve
 D
ire
cto
r) 

Str
ee
t C
lea
ns
ing
 Sa

tis
fac
tio
n 

Sc
rut
iny
 

To
 un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 

cu
rre
nt 
tre
nd
 in
 cu
sto
me
r 

sa
tis
fac
tio
n w

ith
 th
e 

se
rvi
ce
 an
d a
cti
on
 be
ing
 

tak
en
, if
 ne
ce
ss
ary
, to
 

ad
dre
ss
 m
ajo
r c
on
ce
rns
 

wit
h p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

Pa
pe
r 

Jo
hn
 R
ee
s, 
En
vir
on
me
nta
l M
ain
ten
an
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
4 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
1 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

11
 A
ug

us
t 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 2 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
11
 

Ca
bin
et 
W
as
te 
W
ork
ing
 G
rou
p 

(C
WW

G)
 

Sta
nd
ing
 

ite
m 

Co
ns
ide
r is
su
es
 be
ing
 

de
alt
 w
ith
 po
st 

im
ple
me
nta
tio
n o
f th
e 

ne
w 
sc
he
me
 

Ve
rba
l u
pd
ate
 

CW
WG

 re
pre
se
nta
tiv
e 

Jo
int
 W
as
te 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion
ing
 Pr
oje
ct 
(in
c. 

Jo
int
 W
as
te 
Co
mm

itte
e u
pd
ate
)  

Sc
rut
iny
 

Co
ns
ide
r a
nd
 co
mm

en
t 

up
on
 pr
op
os
als
 to
 

es
tab
lish

 a 
LA
 C
om
pa
ny
 

wit
h C

ots
wo
ld 
Co
un
cil 
in 

ord
er 
to 
de
live

r th
eir
 fu
ll 

ran
ge
 of
 w
as
te 
an
d 

rec
ycl
ing
 pr
ior
 to
 C
ab
ine
t 

(20
 Se

pt)
 

Re
po
rt 

Ro
b B

ell
, D
ire
cto
r o
f O
pe
rat
ion
s 

Agenda Item 10
Page 61



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
Ite

m  
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\9\

2\3
\AI

00
00

23
29

\$q
qg

fgy
0d

.do
c 

Im
pe
ria
l a
nd
 M
on
tpe
llie
r 

Ga
rde
ns
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Co
ns
ide
r th
e p
rop

os
ed
 

lay
ou
t fo
r th
e g
ard

en
s 

po
st 
pu
bli
c c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

an
d p
rio
r to
 C
ab
ine
t (2
0 

Se
pt)
 

DR
AF
T C

ab
ine
t 

rep
ort
 

Ro
b B

ell
, D
ire
cto
r o
f O
pe
rat
ion
s 

Ne
w 
Ho
me
s B
on
us
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Co
ns
ide
r th
e p
rop

os
ed
 

tar
ge
ts,
 m
on
ito
rin
g a
nd
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o m

ini
mi
sin
g 

the
 nu
mb
er 
of 
lon
g t
erm

 
pro

pe
rtie
s i
n t
he
 to
wn
 – 

ma
kin
g a
n o
pti
mu
m 

co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o s
ec
uri
ng
 

Ne
w 
Ho
me
s B
on
us
 

pa
ym
en
ts 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

pa
pe
r 

Mi
ke
 R
ed
ma
n, 
Dir
ec
tor
 of
 Bu

ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 

Flo
od
 U
pd
ate
 

Up
da
te 

Up
da
te 
to 
inc
lud
e d
eta
ils 

of 
the
 flo
od
 de
fen
ce
 w
ork
 

in 
Wh

ad
do
n 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

pa
pe
r 

Ge
off
 Be

er,
 Se

nio
r E
ng
ine
er 
(La
nd
 

Dr
ain
ag
e) 

No
rth
 Pl
ac
e a
nd
 Po

rtla
nd
 St
ree
t 

– t
bc
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Tb
c 

Tb
c 

Je
rem

y W
illia
ms
on
,  M

an
ag
ing
 D
ire
cto
r 

– C
he
lte
nh
am
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
t T
as
k F
orc
e 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 2
3 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
1 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

13
 O
cto

be
r 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 11
 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01
1 

Bu
dg
et 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 20
12
-13
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
int
eri
m 
bu
dg
et 

pro
po
sa
ls 
20
12
-13

 an
d 

co
mm

en
t 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

pa
pe
r 

Ma
rk 
Sh
eld
on
, D
ire
cto
r o
f R
es
ou
rce
s 

Wa
ste
 St
rat
eg
y –
 po
st 

im
ple
me
nta
tio
n 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
the
 

im
ple
me
nta
tio
n o
f th
e 

ne
w 
str
ate
gy
 an
d l
es
so
ns
 

lea
rne
d 

Re
po
rt 

Ro
b B

ell
, D
ire
cto
r o
f O
pe
rat
ion
s 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Ta
sk
 

Fo
rce
 

Up
da
te 

Pr
og
res
s i
n t
he
 la
st 
12
 

mo
nth
s a
nd
 fu
tur
e p
lan
s 

 
Pr
es
en
tat
ion
  

Je
rem

y W
illia
ms
on
, M
an
ag
ing
 D
ire
cto
r 

– C
he
lte
nh
am
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
t T
as
k F
orc
e 

Page 62



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
Ite

m  
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\9\

2\3
\AI

00
00

23
29

\$q
qg

fgy
0d

.do
c 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Ca
r P
ark
ing
 

Str
ate
gy
 an
d r
ela
ted
 

en
for
ce
me
nt 
(G
los
. C
ou
nty
 an
d 

CB
C)
 

Up
da
te 

Co
ns
ide
r a
nd
 ag
ree

 dr
aft
 

str
ate
gy
 pr
ior
 to
 C
ab
ine
t 

(tb
c) 

Re
po
rt 

Ow
en
 Pa

rry
, H
ea
d o
f In
teg
rat
ed
 

Tra
ns
po
rt a
nd
 Su

sta
ina
bil
ity
 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
8 J

an
ua

ry 
20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

14
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 6 
Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

Bu
dg
et 
pro

po
sa
ls 
20
12
-13
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
fin
al 
bu
dg
et 

pro
po
sa
ls 
20
12
-13
 pr
ior
 

to 
Co
un
cil 
(10
 Fe
bru

ary
) 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

pa
pe
r 

Ma
rk 
Sh
eld
on
, D
ire
cto
r o
f R
es
ou
rce
s 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 2
9 F

eb
ru
ar
y 2

01
2 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

26
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
12
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 17
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
12
 

DR
AF
T C

orp
ora
te 
Str
ate
gy
 

20
12
-13
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
DR
AF
T s
tra
teg
y 

for
 20
12
-13
 pr
ior
 to
 

Ca
bin
et 
(13
 M
arc
h) 

 
Ric
ha
rd 
Gi
bs
on
, P
oli
cy 
an
d P

art
ne
rsh
ip 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 3
0 M

ay
 20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

tbc
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 18
 M

ay
 20

12
 

Flo
od
 U
pd
ate
 

Up
da
te 

Bia
nn
ua
l u
pd
ate
 on
 flo
od
 

pre
ve
nti
on
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am
 

Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

pa
pe
r –
 tb
c 

Ge
off
 Be

er,
  G
eo
ff B

ee
r, S

en
ior
 

En
gin
ee
r (L

an
d D

rai
na
ge
) 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
1 J

uly
 20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

tbc
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 29
 Ju

ne
 20

12
 

Th
ird
 an
nu
al 
rev
iew

 of
 th
e 

Gl
ou
ce
ste
rsh
ire
 Ai
rpo
rt –
 G
ree

n 
Po
licy
 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Re
vie
w 
of 
the
 G
ree

n 
Po
licy
 

Re
po
rt 

Gi
ll M

orr
is,
 C
lim
ate
 C
ha
ng
e a
nd
 

Su
sta
ina
bil
ity 
Of
fic
er 

Ite
ms

 to
 be

 ad
de

d a
t a

 fu
tur

e d
ate

 
Jo
int
 C
ore
 St
rat
eg
y -
 

de
ve
lop
me
nts
 

Up
da
te 

Aw
ait
ing
 co
nfi
rm
ati
on
 re
: 

sc
he
du
le 
of 
up
da
tes
 fo
r 

20
11
-12
 

tbc
 

Tra
ce
y C

rew
s, 
Sp
ati
al 
Pla
nn
ing
 

Ma
na
ge
r 

Page 63



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
Ite

m  
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\9\

2\3
\AI

00
00

23
29

\$q
qg

fgy
0d

.do
c 

 

Gr
ee
n T
rav
el 
Pla
n 

tbc
 

Aw
ait
ing
 co
nfi
rm
ati
on
 re
: 

rel
ev
an
ce
 of
 ite
m 
fro
m 

Le
ad
 O
ffic
er 

 tb
c 

Ow
en
 Pa

rry
, H
ea
d o
f In
teg
rat
ed
 

Tra
ns
po
rt a
nd
 Su

sta
ina
bil
ity
 

Pa
vin
g s
lab
 re
pa
irs
? 

Tb
c 

Co
ns
ide
r c
os
t c
on
str
ain
ts 

of 
rep

lac
ing
 pa
vin
g s
lab
s 

like
 fo
r li
ke
? 

Tb
c 

Tb
c 

Page 64


	Agenda
	3 Agreement of minutes of meeting held on the 11 May 2011
	2011_07_13_ENV_3_matters_arising_from_last_meeting

	7 Second annual review of the Gloucestershire Airport - Green Policy 2010-2011
	2011_07_13_ENV_7_Appendix_1
	2011_07_13_ENV_7_Appendix_2

	8 Built Environment Commissioning Project
	2011_07_13_ENV_8_Appendix_1_update_report

	9 Street Cleansing Satisfaction
	2011_07_13_ENV_9_Appendix_6

	10 Environment Overview & Scrutiny Work Plan 2011-12

